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SPECIAL CALLED SESSION
OF THE
OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION
OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS

A special called session of the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will

Baptists met on the campus of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Saturday, March
16, 1996. The meeting was called to order by Clerk Keith Burden. He read the
following statement:

“In the 1995 Minutes of the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will

Baptists, the Constitution of this State Association states, under Article VIII,

Section 1, Executive Board -

‘Whereas this board represents the association when not in
session, it and it alone shall have the power to call the association
into special conference provided each affiliated association shall
be given notice at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting of such
special conference.’

The Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College Board of Trustees requested of the ”

Executive Board that there be a called special session of the state association for the
purpose of considering the need for immediate gift income for the college. The
Executive Board has honored this request, and, in accordance with the constitution,
notices were mailed to all our churches on March 1, 1996, informing them of the
date, place and purpose of the meeting.”

Harry Lee shared devotional thoughts from Luke 6:38 and led in prayer.
Moderator David McDougal honored Brother Lee, welcomed delegates

and visitors from other states, and read Ephesians 3:14-21.

Representatives from Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College gave reperts -
about the various concerns and needs of the school. Speakers included: Trustee
Board Chairman Jim Puckett, President Jim Shepherd, Vice President of Academic -

Affairs Tim Eaton, Public Relations Director Buddy Drake and Hillsdale student
Greg Conner.

Following these reports, a number of churches and/or district associations
pledged to give special gifts to Hillsdale which amounted to more than $90,000.00

Motion and second to direct the Hillsdale Board of Trustees to hire a .

financial consultant to develop and implement a capital stewardship fund raising
program. Motion carried to refer this item to the Trustee Board.

Motion carried that the State Association Executive Board be authorized
to borrow the funds necessary to make the total special gift income to Hillsdale
amounting to $300,000.00

Motion carried to adjourn.




PROCEEDINGS
TUESDAY EVENING

The Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists met October 14-17,
1996 at the Fountainhead Lodge in Eufaula, Oklahoma.

Mr. & Mrs. Thomas Ballard, Jr., from the Jenks Free Will Baptist Church,
provided the pre-service music. David Bigger presided in the evening service and
led in the opening prayer.

Scott Bullman led the congregation in singing “Victory in Jesus.” Clerk
Keith Burden called the association into official session and introduced the officers.

The congregation sang “When We All Get To Heaven,” “When the Roll
Is Called Up Yonder,” and “I’ll Fly Away.” Mission Board Chairman David
Bigger presented a plaque to Berton Perry for his years of service as a State Mission
Board member and as the Director of the State Mission Office.

The Cornerstone Quartet ministered in special music, singing “Calvary
Came Through” and “The Old Rugged Cross Made The Difference.”

Brother Bigger introduced the speaker, Springhill Free Will Baptist Pastor
Wade T. Jernigan. Brother Jernigan read Philippians 2:1-11 for his text and spoke
‘on the subject “Jesus, Lord of Heaven.”

Moderator David McDougal read the report of the Committee on
Committees. The committee members were:

NOMINATING COMMITTEE
Mike Wade (Chairman) First Oklahoma
Leroy Holman Center
Connie Cariker Greater Tulsa
Johnny Bilby First Mission
John Bullard Progressive
RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE
Bill Jones (Chairman) Poteau River Valley
Jerry Pilgrim Greater Tulsa
Bill Adcock First Mission
Bob Thomas South Grand River
David Archer . Greater Tulsa
OBITUARY COMMITTEE
J. C. Morgan (Chairman) Greater Tulsa
Delbert Akin First Oklahoma
Bob Duncan Progressive
Charles Bigger Center
Steve Robinson Union

- Jack Richey shared closing announcements. Bob Brown led in the
benediction.




WEDNESDAY MORNING

The morning business session began at 9:15 a.m. Scott Bullman led the
congregation in singing “This Is The Day,” “What a Mighty God” and “To God Be
The Glory.”

Checotah Free Will Baptist Pastor Larry Haggard welcomed the
congregation to the area and introduced U.S. Congressman Dr. Tom Colburn. Dr.
Colburmn brought greetings to the delegates and spoke about the importance of virtue
in government.

David McDougal gave the Moderator’s Address, reading scripture from
Psalms 46:1-7, spoke about the subject of “Change” and led in prayer.

The Clerk read a partial report of the General Board Report. Motlon
carried to adopt item #1 of the General Board Report.

The Clerk read a partial report of the General Board Report. Motion
carried to adopt item #2 of the General Board Report.

Motion carried to seat the standing delegates. ‘

Motion carried to adopt the printed program as the agenda and leave time
schedule flexible.

The Moderator recognized the visitors from the various national offices.

Chairman Charles Murphy gave the Executive Board report. Jack Richey
gave the Executive Secretary’s report. Manager Phil Akin gave the report of the
Free Will Baptist Book Store. Motion carried to accept these reports.

The Clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. Charles
Murphy was elected to serve a 7 year term on the Executive Board.

The Moderator declared a recess for morning worship.

WEDNESDAY MORNING WORSHIP

Scott Bullman led the congregation in singing “He Is Lord” and
“Majesty.” Mike Wade presided in the worship service.

The Minister’s Quartet sang “Where Could I Go?” and “Oh, What A
Savior.”

Brother Wade introduced John Staggs, Pastor of the Henryetta Free Will
Baptist Church in Henryetta, Oklahoma.

Brother Staggs read his text from Mark 8:34, and spoke on the subject,
“Jesus, Lord of the Heart.”

Mike Wade led in the benediction.

WEDNESDAY AFTERNOON

Bob Thomas led the congregation in singing “Great Is Thy Faithfulness.”
Trymon Messer shared devotional thoughts from Mark 1:21 and led in prayer.
Brother Messer also brought greetings from the National Home Missions
Department.




Dr. Melvin Worthington, Executive Secretary for the National Association
of Free Will Baptists, gave a report from the National Executive Office.

Motion carried to adopt item #3 of the General Board Report.

Motion and second to adopt item #4 of the General Board Report. Motion
and second to amend by inserting the words “up to” before the phrase “12
payments.” Motion carried to postpone action on this item until after the Hillsdale
Free Will Baptist College report.

- Brother Bigger gave the report of the State Mission Board. Bill Adcock
reported on the work in Enid and Homer Young reported on the work in El Reno.
David Bigger presented a plaque of appreciation to Leroy Holman for serving two
full terms on the State Mission Board. Motion carried to accept the State Mission
Board report.

The Clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. N. L. Craig
was elected to serve a 7 year term on the State Mission Board.

Board Chairman Jim Puckett, President Jim Shepherd and Public Relations
Director Buddy Drake gave the report of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College.
Chairman Puckett presented President Shepherd and Tim Eaton with a gift of
appreciation from the Trustee Board for their work at Hillsdale. Motion carried to
accept the report.

Item #4 of the General Board Report with its proposed amendment was
brought back to the floor and opened for discussion. Motion carried to replace item
#4 and its proposed amendment with the following Substitute Motion - “That the
State Association assume responsibility for the repayment of the $150,000.00 note.”

Motion carried “That we encourage our churches to give “10.00 per
church per month towards the repayment of the $150,000.00 note.”

Motion and second “That the funds for the loan payments on the
$150,000.00 note come from the following sources: The State Mission Board - up
to 12 payments, State C.E. Board - 2 payments, and Hillsdale be responsible for the
balance of the note.” Motion carried to amend by deleting the statement - “and
Hillsdale be responsible for the balance of the note.” Motion carried to adopt the
main motion as amended.

The Clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. The
following were elected to serve respective terms on the Hillsdale Board of Trustees:

Dale Smith (Greater Tulsa) 5 years

Bill Jones (Poteau River Valley) S years

The Moderator declared a recess until Thursday morning.

WEDNESDAY EVENING WORSHIP

The New Life Singers from Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College provided
the pre-service music.

Yukon Pastor James Murray presided in the evening service. Jerry Pilgrim
led the congregation in singing, “All Hail The Power” and Thank You Lord.”

Poteau First Free Will Baptist Pastor Bill Jones gave the report of the
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National Foreign Missions Department.

As the evening offering was being received, the Hillsdale New Life
Singers sang “In The House Of The Lord.”

Brother Murray introduced the speaker just before Michael Davis sang “I
Bowed On My Knees and Cried Holy.”

New Home Free Will Baptist Pastor Roy Dale Smith read Ephesians 5:21-
6:4 and spoke on the subject “Jesus, Lord of the Home.” ;

Brother Murray shared some announcements and Blll Barber led in the
dismissal prayer.

THURSDAY MORNING WORSHIP

Morning worship began at 9:00 a.m. as Jeff Dallen led the congregation
in singing “Family of God,” “Bind Us Together,” Turn Your Eyes Upon Jesus” and
“What A Day That Will Be.” Kent Hubbard presided and led in prayer.

Jeff Dallen provided special music by singing “Sorry, I Never Knew You.”

Brother Hubbard introduced the moming worship speaker, Spencer Road
Pastor Dennis Cariker. Brother Cariker read Matthew 9:35-38, and spoke on the
subject, “Jesus, Lord of the Harvest.” Kent Hubbard led the congregation in
singing “Send The Light,” “I Love To Tell The Story” and “Take Up Thy Cross
and Follow Me.” Brother Hubbard led in the closing prayer.

THURSDAY MORNING

Brad Ransom gave the report of the Christian Education Board. Motion
carried to accept this report.

The Clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. The
following were elected to serve respective terms on the Christian Education Board:

Steven Turner (South Grand River) 5 years
Joey Wilson (First Oklahoma) 5 years
Wayne Bryant (Arbuckle) 1 year

Edwin Wade gave the Historical Commission report. Motion carried to
accept this report.

The Clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. Ray
Gwartney was elected to serve a 3 year term on the Historical Commission.

The Clerk read the Obituary Committee Report. Motion camed to adopt
the report. Roger Ballard led in prayer.

The Clerk read item #5 of the General Board Report. Motion and second
to adopt item #5. Motion carried to amend item #5 by replacing the phrase
“Executive Secretary of the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists” with
the phrase “Chairman of the Hillsdale Board of Trustees.” Motion carried to adopt
item #5 as amended.



Motion carried “That Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College be responsible
for funding the work of the task force.”

Motion carried “That President Jim Shepherd be included as a member of
the task force.”

The Clerk read item #6 of the General Board Report. Motion carried to
adopt item #6.

The Clerk read item #7 of the General Board Report. Motion carried to
adopt item #7.

The Clerk read item #8 of the General Board Report. Motion carried to
adopt item #8. ' ‘

The Clerk read the report of the Oklahoma Women Active for Christ. This
report was received as information.

The Clerk read the report of the Oklahoma Minister’s Conference. This
report was received as information.

The Clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. Dean
Thompson was elected to serve a 2 year term on the Hillsdale Board of Trustees.

The Clerk read the list of nominees to serve as General Board Members
for 1997 from the various district associations. All of these were elected.

The Clerk read the registration report:

Ministers 128
Deacons 30
Delegates 41
Visitors 207
Missionaries _14
Total Registration 420
Wednesday night missions offering $973.03

State Executive Secretary Jack Richey reported that the State Convention
would meet at Fountainhead Lodge in 1997.

The Clerk read the final report of the Nominating Committee. The
following were elected to serve as the 1996 State Officers:

Assistant Clerk Ron Brown
Clerk Keith Burden
Assistant Moderator Kent Hubbard
Moderator David McDougal

Motion carried to adjourn. Dan Harper led in the closing prayer.




THE GENERAL BOARD REPORT

The General Board of the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will
Baptists met October 14, 1996 at the Fountainhead State Lodge in Eufaula,
Oklahoma. As a result of that meeting, we offer the following items for your
consideration.

1. We received communication from twenty-three of the twenty-
three District Associations comprising the membership of this body. We
recommend their letters be received and their delegates seated.

2. We heard the reports of the Executive Board, Executive
Secretary, Free Will Baptist Book Store, State Missions Board, Hillsdale Free Will
Baptist College, State Christian Education Board and the Historical Commission.
We forward these reports to you for your consideration and refer the adoption of
their budgets to the Budget Committee’s recommendations.

3. We recommend that the State Executive Board be authorized to
pursue the restructuring and relocation of the Book Store operations to the State
Office and to make long range plans for this ministry. [Note: This includes the
liquidation of current assets and the sale of the South Walker location.]

4. We recommend that the funds for the loan payments on the
$150,000.00 come from the following sources: The State Mission Board - 12
payments, State C.E. Board - 2 payments, and Hillsdale be responsible for the
balance of the note.

5. We recommend that the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will
Baptists authorize the Executive Secretary of the Oklahoma State Association of
Free Will Baptists to head a task force for the purpose of proposing regional
ownership of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College. The task force shall include the
state moderators and executive secretaries of Oklahoma, Arkansas, Missouri, and
Texas and two at-large members from each state to be appointed by the respective
states. .

6. As the Budget Committee, we recommend that a Cooperative
Budget of $380,000.00 be adopted for the 1997-1998 year.

7. As the Budget Committee, we recommend that the Cooperative
Funds be distributed according to the following percentages:

State Executive Office (22%) 83,600.00

State Mission Board (15%) 57,000.00

Hillsdale College (33%) 125,400.00

Christian Education Board (6%) 22,800.00

National Ministries (24%) 91.200.00
TOTAL ALLOCATIONS (100%) $380,000.00

8. As the Budget Committee, we recommend the budgets of each
department as requested in these amounts:

Executive Office 182,000.00

Free Will Baptist Book Store **443,000.00

State Mission Board 707,000.00
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Christian Education Board 143,450.00

Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College 1,554,345.00
TOTAL STATE BUDGETS $ 3,029,795.00

*+The budget of the Free Will Baptist Book Store will be revised by the Executive
Board since item #3 was adopted.

RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE REPORT

No report.
OBITUARY COMMITTEE REPORT

Association Members Deceased Ministers

Arbuckle 3 0

Arkansas Valley 5 0

Canadian 5 Rev. Olen Woodruff

Center 26 Rev. F. M. Wood

Dibble 12 0

Eureka 8 Rev. Norman Woodruff
Rev. W. W. Wood

First Mission 18 0

First Oklahoma 16 0

Gaines Creek 7 ' Rev. Don Conn

Greater Tulsa 0 0

Hopewell #1 10 0

Hopewell #2 8 0

Kiamichi 13 Rev. Joe Zummer

Little River 0 0

New Life 4 0

Northeast 3 0

Poteau River Valley 1 ' Rev. Henry Scroggins

Progressive 12 Rev. Sherman Webb

Robert’s McGee 7 0

South Grand River 21 Rev. Carl Hembree

Southeastern 2 0

Tulsa Area 4 0

Union 2 0

Other 1 Rev. Dale Vanderburg

TOTAL 188 10

We move that a time of prayer be held to honor the memories of these
deceased members and to ask God to comfort the hearts of their families.
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REPORT OF THE
OKLAHOMA WOMEN ACTIVE FOR CHRIST

The Oklahoma Women Active for Christ convened on Tuesday, October

15 here at Fountainhead Lodge. Registration totaled 115. The theme, “Aiming to

Please” was carried out in music, and a message brought to us by Sandy Smith,

Home Missionary to Portland, Oregon. Gifts from the Free Will Baptist Women

of Oklahoma to missions, colleges and other endeavors totaled over $125,000.00

for the past year. Our annual state women’s retreat in May had over 800 in
attendance. We give the Lord all the credit for what has been done in the last year. -

It is our desire to see more local groups organized and become part of this good

work. .
Submitted by Jean Marie Rogers, President
Debbie Burden, Secretary

OKLAHOMA MINISTER’S CONFERENCE REPORT

Speakers:
1) Danny Hester - Bartlesville
2) Russell Payne - Holdenville
3) Gary Elder - Bixby

Special music:
1) Thomas Ballard, Jr. - Jenks
2) Tommy Tims - Pryor

Registered 108

Paid Registration 64

Attendance 137

v

We thank everyone for taking part in this year’s Minister’s Conference.
Steven Turner - President
Danny Phillips - Vice President
Roy Dale Smith - Treasurer
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EXECUTIVE BOARD REPORT

We have enjoyed another good year and express our appreciation for the
faithfulness of the churches in Oklahoma to the programs of our denomination.

Actions of the Executive Board for the year are as follows:

1.
2.
3.

Approved an All Board Appreciation meal for the State Meeting

Purchased a fax machine for the State Office

Recommended that the State buy 1 acre of land in the amount of
$3,400.00 for FWBBC

. Secured a loan in the amount of $175,000.00 for the State Missions

Project in El Reno

. At the request of the Hillsdale Board of Trustees, called a special State

Meeting for March 16, 1996

. Borrowed $150,000.00 for Hillsdale budget needs as voted by special

called State Meeting. The loan is for 5 years at 7.5% interest.
Payments began August 1, 1996 in the amount of $3012.49 per
month.

The Executive Board has three recommendations:

I.

The cooperative budget for 1997-1998 remain at $380,000.00 and that

the allocations for state and national ministries be as follows:

Hillsdale 33% $ 125,400.00
State Missions 15% 57,000.00
C.E. Board 6% 22,800.00
State Executive Office 22% 83,600.00
National Coop 24% 91,200.00

100% $ 380,000.00

2. We recommend that the State Executive Board be authorized to pursue
the restructuring and relocation of the Book Store operations to the State Office and
to make long range plans for this ministry.

3.

We recommend that the funds for the loan payments on the $150,000.00

note come from the following sources. The State Mission Board - 12 payments,
State C.E. Board - 2 payments, and Hillsdale be responsible for the balance of the

note.
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EXECUTIVE SECRETARY REPORT

I have had the privilege to be in many of our churches and associations this year.
Oklahoma Free Will Baptists have permitted me to share the needs of all our
denominational ministries and have responded to those needs.

I sponsored a bus trip to the Leadership Conference in Nashville in December and
planned a Minister’s Retreat in March. It proved to be a real blessing to those who
were able to attend.

Because of your faithfulness, I am happy to report another record year in
cooperative giving. The amount this year was $388,581. To God be the glory!

NATIONAL HOME MISSIONS
General Fund $ 11,988
Miscellaneous 4,573
Arizona Land, Mesa 2,552
Benjamin Randall Offering 4,812
Build My Church 300
Bivens, Bud 5,978
Coats, Tim 334
Collins, Larry 2,241
Criswell, Mike 1,475 '
Crabtree, Jeff 473
Doggett, Ken 146
Donoho, ClLiff . 70
Gonzalez, Hilarino 1,515
Gwartney, Howard 5,748
Gwartney, Howard Ray 10,112
Harvey, George 9,216
Harvey, Land Fund 320
Harvey, Building Fund 1,315
Highway Helpers 925
Hubbard, Levan 283
Hunt, Tom 1,065
Jones, Fred 120
Lewis, Bob 526
Lewis, Land Fund 445
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Maness, Virgil

Mass., Plymouth
Mendoza, Marco
Mertz, Jim

Mexico General
Mexico Miscellaneous
Mexico Institute
Mexico Student Fund
Mexico Pastors
Munsey, James

Parker, Ron

Phillips, Bill

Portland, OR Building
Potete, David

Raper, Roger

Richards, Norman
Rodriquez, Jose
Salazar, Pablo

Sloan, Land Fund
Sloan, Jeff

Smith, Darrell

Third World Countries (Cuba)
Thomas, Bob

Thomas, Mark )
Vandivort, Mark
VanWinkle, Terry
VanWinkle, Continued Ed & Adv
VanWinkle, Land Fund
Vera, M

Wilson, Roy

Wright, Russell
Wyoming - Russell Johnson
Zuniga, Felix

TOTAL

NATIONAL FOREIGN MISSIONS

General Fund
Miscellaneous

Bailey, Ken

Bishop, Dale

Brazil Children’s Home
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1,495
550
1,300
399
2,094
5,138
817
110
3,667
735
2,790
10,317
175
2,798
1,618
70
1,127
15
8,508
31,257
16,005
459
2,298
483
36
20,196
1,612
1,913
130
466
50
4,928
1,375
$191,465

10,964
1,193
575
2,819
584




Bryan, Robert
Bunch, Stan
Callaway, Ron
Combs, Jim
Cousineau, Mike
Cowart, Jim
Creech, Paul
Crosby, Dwain
Crowson, Allen
Deeds, Earnie
Doropo Medical Account
Eagleton, Ken
Eagleton, Ken Dr.
Ellison, Walter
Gentuso, Paul
Hanna, Carlisle
Hersey, Fred
Holland, Curt
Holland, Emest
Ivory Coast

Ivory Coast Institute
Kambou, Ernest
Lee, Sherwood
Lytle, Steve
Marten, Jalayn
McCullough, Tom
McDonald, Don
McLain, Jim
Midgett, Lynn
Moore, Ron
Morgan, Clint
Nichols, Darrell
Owens, Dennis
Paschall, Mark MD
Pinkerton, Jerry
Plunkett, Lloyd
Poole, Bobby
Russian Missions Forlines
Sparks, Lonnie
Tallant, Charolette
Teague, Dennis
Turnbough, Jeff
World Mission Sunday (Laura Belle Barnard)

TOTAL
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22,030
4,668
330
18,598
55,798
3,644
55
11,837
25
23,920
1,028
25

745
295
165
469
689
6,824
21,118
4

180
100

60

205
39,591
15

350
426
26,717
450
1,022
50,000
60
1,788
1,530
5,679
60
1,163
13
8,667
10,983
2,635
893
340,989



STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS
Financial Statements
June 30, 1995 and 1996
Together With Auditor’s Report Thereon

July 10, 1996
To the Executive Board:

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of the Oklahoma
State Association of Free Will Baptists as of June 30, 1996 and 1995, and the related
statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the State Association’s management. Our
res&)onsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed on Note (7) to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30,
1996, the State Association changed its method of accounting for contributions and
its method of financial reporting and financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Oklahoma State Association of Free
Will Baptist as of June 30, 1996 and 1995, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Havern, Behrens, Heim & Byford, CPA’S

STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1995

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS 1996 1995
Cash $ 26,853 $ 9,841
Certificate of Deposit 13,439 12,602
Current Portion of Note
Receivable (Note 2) 5,419 4,140
Total Current Assets 45,711 26,583
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Office Building

Building improvements
Furniture, fixtures & equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation

OTHER ASSETS
Loan origination costs
Note receivable (Note 2)

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET AS SETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payroll taxes payable
Designated contributions
payable (Note 3)
Current portion of long
term debt (Note 6)
Total Current Liabilities

LONG TERM DEBT (Note 6)

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted
Undesignated
Designated

Temporarily restricted

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
NET ASSETS

STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1995

1996

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Support:
Co-operative revenues
Other contributions

22

103,726
26,316
51,557

(159,094)
22,505

3,680
20,939
$ 922835

$ 399
17,227

23,523
41,149

126,477

71,529
(146,320)

74,791

$ 923835

$ 85,494
7,516

103,726
26,316
56,503

(157,757)
28,788

26,358
$ 81.729

$ 545

6,198

6,743

75,450
(464)
74,986

81,72

1995

$ 85,634
5,656

e — s
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Promoter publications 14,208 -
State and national convention fees 12,350 11,835

Pastoral conference fees 6,508 -
Executive secretary
speaking support 2,982 2,090
Gain on disposal of assets 3,810 -
Other support 8,106 363
Interest income 4811 4734
Total unrestricted support 145,785 110,312
Net assets released from
donor restrictions 1,270,831 1,341,682
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED SUPPORT
AND RECLASSIFICATIONS 1,416,616 1,451,994
Expenses:
General and administrative:
- Salaries 39,399 38,120
Retirement, hospitalization
and building 8,514 7,670
Payroll taxes 6,207 5,637
Housing 12,000 6,523
Utilities 4,003 2,991
Promoter 23,238 12,989
State and national conventions 12,795 16,974
Depreciation 10,256 10,190
Executive secretary travel 8,430 10,380
Miscellaneous 7,793 3,682
Pastoral conference 7,528 -
Telephone 2,340 2,605
Supplies 2,172 1,790
Maintenance and repairs 2,131 5,180
Executive board meetings 1,550 3,866
Professional fees 1,350 1,350
149,706 129,947

Board designated expenses:

Gift to Hillsdale FWBC 145,400 -
Amortization of related loan costs 920 -
146,320 -

Released restricted assets expended:
Donor specified ministries
and churches 967,744 1,040,898

23




Cooperative expenditures 303,087 300,784

1,270,831 1,341,682
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,566,857 1,471,629
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS (150,241) (19,635)
TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED
NET ASSETS ‘
Co-operative contributions 968,208 1,040,213
Other contributions 303,087 300,784
Net assets released from
donor restrictions (1,270,831) (1,341,682)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED
NET ASSETS 464 685
TOTAL DECREASE IN
NET ASSETS (149,777) (20,320)
NET ASSETS, beginning 74,986 95,306
NET ASSETS, ending 74.791 $ 74,986

STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1995

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

1996 1995
Decrease in Net Assets $ (149,777) $ (20,320)
Adjustments to reconcile decrease
in net assets to net cash flows
from operating activities:

Depreciation 10,256 10,190
Amortization 920 -
Gain from disposal of assets (3,807) -
(Increase) Decrease in current assets:

Certificate of Deposit (837) (602)
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Increase (Decrease) in current liabilities:

Accrued expenses (147 (239)
Designated contributions
payable 11,029 (1.616)
Total Adjustments 17.414 1,733
Net Cash Flow from
Operating Activities (132,363) (18,587)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of equipment (5,360) (4,616)
Reimbursement of insurance claim 5,195 -
Collection of principal
on note receivable 4,140 3,566
Net Cash Flow from
Investing Activities: 3.975 (1.050)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long-term debt, net of loan

closing costs of $4,600 145.400 -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 17,012 (19,637)
Cash at the beginning of the year 9,841 29.478
Cash at the end of the year $ 26,853 $_ 9841

STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1995

(1) - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General - The State Association of Free Will Baptists is a non-profit
organization designed to provide central leadership and representation for the Free
Will Baptists of Oklahoma and to handle certain receipts and disbursements of the
Free Will Baptist Churches. The standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether Association uses fund
accounting, whereby the net assets represents the equity the Association has in its
assets.

The State Association governs the following auxiliary functions, the Oklahoma Free
Will Baptist Bookstore, the Board of Church Extension, Missions and Evangelism,

25




and the Christian Education Board. Combined financial statements are not prepared
for these functions because meaningful information would not result from
presenting combined financial statements.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are recorded at cost.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the related assets. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to
operations when incurred while major betterments and renewals are capitalized.

The following useful lives were used to calculate depreciation:
Buildings 15 years
Building Improvements 10 to 15 years
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 5 years

(2) - NOTE RECEIVABLE .

The State Association loaned the Oklahoma Free Will Baptist Bookstore
$35,000 in May 1994. The note receivable bears an interest rate of 6.5% and is
unsecured. Monthly principal and interest payments of $500 are received. The loan
is expected to be repaid in May 1999. The following represents a summary of the
principal maturities over the next three years:

Year ending June 30

1997 6,306

1998 11,021

1999 _9.031
26,3

(3) - DESIGNATED CONTRIBUTIONS PAYABLE

To provide timely payment of designated contributions to recipients,
receipts through the 20th of each month are disbursed to recipients by the end of
each month. The designated contributions payable consists of the total of
designated contributions received between June 20 and June 30.

(4) - COOPERATIVE CONTRIBUTIONS AND EXPENDITURES

The State Association receives contributions to be cooperatively allocated
among board approved organizations. The percentage allocation of Cooperative
Contributions for the year ended June 30, 1996 and 1995 was as follows:

June 30,
1996 1995
State Association 22% 22%
Hillsdale College 33% 33%
State Mission Board 15% 15%
Christian Education Board 6% 6%
National Association of Free Will Baptists 24% 24%
100% 100%
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(5) - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The State Association has signed noted agreements as guarantor for several
developing churches. Historically, none of these churches have defaulted on these
note agreements and the State Association believes it is unlikely any of these will
default on these loans in the future. However, should these churches become unable
to meet their debt service, the State Association will be liable for payment of the
debt. A complete listing of outstanding loans for Free Will Baptist Churches for
which the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptist has guaranteed is not
available.

(6) - LONG-TERM DEBT

The State Association is obligated as primary borrower on a promissory
note to an individual in the amount of $150,000. This debt is secured by a mortgage
on the real estate and payable in monthly installments of $3,012 including interest
accruing at 7.5% beginning August, 1996. Principal payment maturities for the
years ending June 30th are as follows:

1997 $ 23,523
1998 27,574
1999 29,715
2000 32,022
2001 34,507
Thereafter __ 2,659

$ 150,000

(7) - CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The State Association elected to adopt Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 116, Accounting for Contributions and SFAS No. 117,
Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Organizations as of June 30, 1996. In
accordance with SFAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support depending on the existence
and/or nature of any donor restrictions. Under SFAS No. 116, such contributions
are required to be reported as temporarily restricted support and are then reclassified
to unrestricted net assets upon fulfiliment of the donor’s specifications. Under
SFAS No. 117, the State Association is required to report information regarding its
financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted
net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.
In addition, the State Association is required to present a Statement of Cash Flows.
As permitted by this new Statement, the State Association has discontinued its use
of fund accounting and has, accordingly, reclassified its financial statements to
present the three classes of net assets required.
(8) - RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been
reclassified for comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the
current-year financial statements.
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EXECUTIVE BOARD
1997-1998 PROPOSED BUDGET

INCOME:

Executive Secretary Speaking
Interest Income

State Convention Fees
National Convention Fees
Cooperative Giving (22%)
Designated Giving

Promoter

Miscellaneous

Other Income

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENDITURES:

Executive Secretary

Secretary .

Building, Hospitalization and
Worker’s Comp. Ins..

Retirement.

Payroll Taxes

Housing

Utilities

Telephone

Executive Secretary Travel

Executive Board Meetings

Postage

Promoter

Supplies

Building Maintenance and Repair

Equipment Maintenance and Repair

State Convention Expense

National Convention Expense

Audit

Pastors Conference

Loan Payment

Miscellaneous

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

28

$ 4,500
4,000
6,250
6,250

83,600
7,000
15,000
400
55.000

$182,000

$ 24,000
18,200

7,500
2,400
6,700
12,000
4,500
3,600
10,000
1,500
600
20,000
1,000
1,250
1,000
6,250
8,000
1,500
12,500
37,500
2,000

$182,000



OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST BOOK STORE REPORT

Greetings from your Bookstore:

Thank you for your business and patronage. It has been a blessing to serve
you and your church during the past year. We enjoyed serving you at the Pastor’s
Conference in March, the ladies retreat in May, the State Meeting last October and
the various Christian Education events throughout the year. These successful events
lay a foundation for more good things to come.

We continue to pursue our purpose: “To serve the church and its pastor by
providing quality Christian resources for every area of ministry.” We appreciate
every opportunity you give us to provide material and training resources to further
this purpose.

God bless you as you equip and train His church.

In His Service,
Phil Akin, Manager

: " OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST BOOKSTORE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

JULY 11,1996
To The Executive Board:

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of the
OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST BOOKSTORE, as of June 30, 1996 and
1995, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bookstore’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly the
financial position of the Oklahoma Free Will Baptist Bookstore as of June 30, 1995
and 1994, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then
ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles applied on a
consistent basis.

Havern, Behrens, Heim & Byford, CPA’S
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OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST BOOKSTORE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1995

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 2,738
Accounts receivable,
net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of

$1400 in 1996 and 1995 21,273
Prepaid Expenses -
Inventory (Note 1) 144,288
168,299
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land 5,000
Building 22,500
Building improvements 44,923
Automobiles 11,500
Furniture, fixtures and
equipment 89,518
173,441
Less: Accumulated depreciation 144,249
Net Property & Equipment 29.192
TOTAL ASSETS $ 197,491

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 56,742
Other liabilities 1,674
Current portion of
long term debt 19,349
77,765
LONG TERM DEBT
Notes payable (Note 2) 20,655
Total Liabilities 98,420
NET ASSETS 99,071
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND NET ASSETS $197.491
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$ 3,226

18,480
534
154,160
176,400

5,000
22,500
44,923
11,500

85.071
168,994
134,907

$ 34,087

$210.487



OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST BOOKSTORE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1995

SALES 1996 1995
Retail $ 151,181 $ 113,835
Sunday School 264,172 277,033
Vacation Bible School 16,209 15,864
Postage and handling 17.865 17.157
449,427 423,888
COST OF GOODS SOLD 307948 277,200
GROSS MARGIN 141,479 146,688

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries 62,340 63,347
*  Postage 11,905 13,405
Office Supplies & other 12,568 11,091
Rent 300 852
Utilities 5,368 4,365
Telephone 5,842 5,350
Depreciation (Note 1) 9,342 11,116
Insurance 9,136 8,775
Interest 7,423 7,130
Advertising and promotion 7,425 4,521
Payroll taxes 5,055 4,885
Legal and Accounting 4,975 5,000
Automobile 2,370 2,984
Repairs and maintenance 5,371 6,480
Bank charges 814 897
Professional meetings 1,289 591
Bad debt expense - 1,033
151,523 151,822

OTHER INCOME

Interest 331 465
NET INCOME (LOSS) . (9,713) (4,668)
NET ASSETS, beginning 108,784 113,452
NET ASSETS, ending $ 99.071 $ 108,784
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OKIL AHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST BOOKSTORE

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR
THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1995

1996

CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss) $ (9,713)
Adjustments to reconcile net income

to net cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation 9,342
(Increase) Decrease in current assets:

Accounts receivable (2,793)

Inventory 9.872

Prepaid Expenses 534
Increase (Decrease) in current liabilities:

Accounts payable 7,674

Other liabilities (443)
Total Adjustments 24.186
Total cash flows from

operating activities 14,473

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition of equipment (4.447)
Total cash flows from
investing activities 4,447)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds for issuance
of long term debt 105,000
Principal payments

on long term debt (115,514)
Total cash flows from
financing activities (10,514)
Total Increase
(Decrease) in cash (488)
Cash at the beginning of the year 3226
Cash at the end of the year $ 2,738
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1995

$ (4,668

11,116
765
(14,813)
(534)
21,253

108
17.895

13,227

(7,629)

(7629)

(13,962)

(13.962)
(8,364)
11,590

$ 3,226



OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST BOOKSTORE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1995

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General - The financial statements of the Bookstore have been prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting, wherein income and expense are recorded as they
are earned or incurred. The Bookstore does not combine their financial statements
with those of the State Association of Free Will Baptists because meaningful
information would not result from presenting combined financial statements.

Inventories - Inventories are recorded at the lower cost or market using the
first-in, first-out method of accounting.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are recorded at cost.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as summarized below:

Building and improvements 40 years
Furniture, fixtures & equipment 3 to 10 years

Income Taxes - No provision for income taxes has been made as the
Bookstore is a non-profit organization exempt from income tax under Section 501
© (3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

(2) NOTES PAYABLE AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
Note payable consists of the following:
1996 1995
Open line of credit to a bank,
renewed on a monthly basis
for $35,000. $ 3,484 $ -

Note payable to a bank in

monthly installments of

$1,049, bearing interest at

10.25% adjusted annually

based on New York Prime,

final payment due April 1997,

secured by accounts

receivable, furniture &

fixtures, and equipment. 10,161 $20,019

Note payable to State Association
of Free Will Baptist bearing
interest at 6.5% due in monthly
installments of $500 until

33




April 1997 and $1000 until

April 1999, unsecured. 26,358
Total Notes Payable 40,003
Less current portion 19.348

Non current portion $20,655

Future principal maturities for the years ended June 30, are as follows:

June 30, 1997 19,348
June 30, 1998 10,962
June 30, 1999 9,693

BOOKSTORE 1997 - 1998 PROPOSED BUDGET

SALES:
Retail $ 115,000
Curriculum 285,000
Vacation Bible School 15,000
Shipping and Handling 18.000
TOTAL SALES $ 433,000

SELLING, GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

COST OF GOODS SOLD:

Retail $ 80,500

Curriculum 199,500

VBS 10,500

TOTAL COST OF SOLD $290,500

Salaries & FICA 64,000

Advertising and Promotions 5,000

Employee Insurance 6,600

Postage & Shipping 18,000

Telephone and Utilities 11,000

Repair and Maintenance 8,500
Insurance: Building, Contents,

Workers Comp.. 5,000

Supplies 7,000

Equipment and Auto 8,400

Miscellaneous 9,000

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 142,500

TOTAL BUDGET $ 433,000
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30,498

$ 50,517
15,287
$35,230



STATE MISSION BOARD REPORT

EL RENO: Major efforts this year have been directed toward the new building that
was completed in April, 1996. This 7,420 sq. ft. building will seat over 200 in the
sanctuary; has a kitchen and dining area; an upstairs over the educational facilities;
classrooms and a pastor’s office; baptistry; steeple; and concrete parking lot. The
Mission Board made a 20 year loan for $175,000 from Broadhurst Foundation for
this building.

We are so grateful to the many individuals who worked on the building.
A number of people from “Helping Hands Crew” came to help during hot days last
summer. Special thanks to Garry Depperschmidt, Don Allen, and Pascal Bevans for
their contributions in completing the plumbing, electrical, and heat & air
conditioning. Our gratitude, also, to Gene and Danny Hawkins who spent many
days doing tractor work on parking, landscaping, etc. A special thanks to Charles
(Chuck) Wood for the months of hard labor he contributed in so many different
areas.

A number of El Reno folks gave many days of labor and were so delightful
to wotk with. Ladies from the church provided some wonderful meals for workers
at different times. Pastor Homer Young put in more time than anyone else, often
starting before daylight and working into the night. Mission Director Berton Perry,
acted as builder and superintendent.

Brother Young reported that their Sunday morning worship average for the
year was 46 and the highest attendance for any Sunday was 192. He hopes to reach
an average of 100 as soon as possible. He feels that this number will give enough
financial base to support all expenses, building payments, and pastor’s salary.

ENID: During the year, six new families have been added to the church, seven were
saved, and a number were rededicated. The average Sunday School attendance for
the year was 37 and worship average was 57.

Pastor Bill Adcock and his wife Betty, have faced many health difficulties
in their family since accepting the Enid Church. Both he and his wife are having
health problems and each have learned recently that both of their fathers are
seriously ill. Betty’s father has been diagnosed with pancreatic cancer and Bill’s
father recently suffered a heart attack and was told he has congestive heart failure.

Please remember the Adcock family and the Enid Church during these
trying times.

MISSION BOARD NEWS: The Mission Board was notified in June that State
Mission Director Berton Perry resigned to accept a church in Arkansas.

Berton began serving in this position November 1, 1983. He has served
as interim pastor of five missions during these years including: Bartlesville, Crystal
Hills in Lawton, Fort Gibson, Hugo, and Enid, for a combined total of 29 months.
He acted as builder and superintendent in constructing new buildings at Glenpool,
Hugo, and El Reno. Carpentry repairs and additions were also conducted at Elk
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City, Vinita, Weatherford, Enid and East Latimer in Tulsa, totaling 33 months.

Other ways he served included: scheduling itinerary services for Foreign,
Home, and State Missionaries; serving as Board treasurer and bookkeeper, office
secretary, promotional director (promoted in 246 Oklahoma churches during those
years), fund raiser, and State Missionary advisor and counselor.

The Board plans to fill this position sometime in the future.

During our June Board meeting, we were told that in compliance with the
called State Association meeting in March, the State Executive Board borrowed
$150, 000 for Hillsdale. Our Board voted that beginning August 1, 1996, we will
make the $3012.49 monthly payments on this money borrowed for Hillsdale for a
period of up to one year or until a new Mission Director is secured.

OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF
FREE WILL BAPTISTS
BOARD OF CHURCH EXTENSION, MISSIONS
AND EVANGELISM
July 11, 1996

TO THE STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We have audited accompanying statement of assets, liabilities, and net
assets - cash basis of the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists Board
of Church Extension, Missions and Evangelism (the Board) as of June 30, 1996 and
1995, and the related statement of revenues, expenses, and other changes in net
assets - cash basis for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Board’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing

standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain:

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As described in Note 1, these financial statements were prepared on the
cash basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than
generally accepted accounting principles.

As further discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the year
ended June 30, 1996 the Board changed its method of accounting for contributions
and its method of financial reporting and financial statement presentation.
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In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the assets, liabilities, and net assets of the Oklahoma State
Association of Free Will Baptists Board of Church Extension, Missions and
Evangelism as of June 30, 1996 and 1995, and the revenues, and expenses and other
changes in net assets for the years then ended, on the basis of accounting described
in Note 1.

Havern, Behrens, Heim & Byford, CPA’S

OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS
BOARD OF CHURCH EXTENSION
MISSIONS AND EVANGELISM
STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES
AND NET ASSETS - CASH BASIS
JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1995

ASSETS 1996 1995
Unrestricted:

Cash $ 25,516 $ 11,405
Temporarily restricted:

Cash - 9,199
Permanently restricted:

Endowment trust (Note 2) 1,000 1,000
TOTAL ASSETS $ 25,516 $21,604
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted:

Undesignated $ 25,516 $ 11,405
Temporarily restricted - 9,199
Permanently restricted 1,000 1,000

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 26,516 $ 21,604

OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS
BOARD OF CHURCH EXTENSION,
MISSIONS AND EVANGELISM
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, AND EXPENSES
ND OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - CASH BASIS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1995

1996 1995
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Support
: Co-operative revenues 58,285 57,843
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Interest income 691 531
Total unrestricted support 58,976 58,374
Net assets released from
donor restrictions 279.080 77,272
Total unrestricted support :
and reclassifications 338,056 135,646
Expenses
Salaries and benefits 60,863 92,074
Mission church expenses 241,603 21,012
Travel and promotion 9,601 15,008
Insurance 6,031 4,302
Telephone 1,004 2,081
Office supplies and postage 1,042 1,885
Promoter publication 3,176 785
Audit 625 625
TOTAL EXPENSES 323,945 137,772
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 14,111 (2,126)
TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS :
Mission churches 238,246 59,614
Other restricted donations 31,635 17,658
Net assets released from
donor restrictions 279.0 (17.272)
(DECREASE) IN TEMPORARILY ‘
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS (9.199) -
TOTAL INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 4,912 (2,156)
NET ASSETS, beginning 21,604 23,730
NET ASSETS, ending $26.516 $ 21,604

OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS

BOARD OF CHURCH EXTENSION, MISSIONS
AND EVANGELISM
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1995

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists Board of Church

Extension, Missions and Evangelism (the Mission Board) is an auxiliary

function

of the State Association of Free Will Baptists created to assist in the establishment
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of Free Will Baptist churches in the state of Oklahoma. The Mission Board does not
combine their financial statements with those of the State Association of Free Will
Baptist. ;
To ensure observance of certain constraints and restrictions placed on the
use of resources, the accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of
fund accounting. Net assets, representing resources to be utilized for various
purposes, are classified for accounting and reporting purposes in accordance with
the nature of the donors’ restrictions, when applicable.

The Board’s policy is to prepare its financial statements on the cash basis
of accounting; consequently, certain revenues are recognized when received rather
than when earned, and certain expenses are recognized when cash is disbursed
rather than when the obligation is incurred. There are no material
receivables/payables at year end.

The Board is exempt from federal and state income taxation under Section
501© (3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Salaries and benefits represent amounts paid to Mission Church ministers.

Restricted cash represents unexpended restricted donations.

As of June 30, 1995, the Board elected to adopt Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit
Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, the Board is required to report information
regarding its assets and liabilities and support, revenue and expenses according to
three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets,
and permanently restricted net assets. The Board has reclassified its financial
statements to present the three classes of net assets required. This reclassification
had no effect on net assets for the year ended June 30, 1996.

NOTE 2 - ENDOWMENT TRUST ‘
Funds of $1,000 are on deposit with the National Free Will Baptist
Association as a permanent endowment trust for future us of the Board.

MISSION BOARD PROPOSED BUDGET
JULY 1, 1997 TO JUNE 30, 1998

TOTAL INCOME $707,000
Coop $ 57,000
Designated 150,000
Loans 500,000
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS $707,000
Salaries $ 140,000
Travel and Promotion 30,000
Office, Phone, Postage 8,000
Expenses for Missions 29,000
Loans 500,000

39




HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE
REPORT TO THE
OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS

Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College stands as a testimony of the vision of
Oklahoma Free Will Baptists and the abundant blessings of the God they serve,
People who have seen the need for Christian higher education-training men and
women for effective life and service for Jesus Christ-have provided faithful and
sacrificial support for the advancement of the kingdom of God and our youth.

Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College is, and always has been, a work of faith,
In committing to a worthy cause, the college’s supporters believed that God would
provide the resources that were needed for success. Through the years, God has
honored us by calling qualified people to serve, by sending students with ready
minds and hearts, and by leading people to responsible stewardship in supporting
the college.

In 1996, Hillsdale faced circumstances that had that potential of altering
the college’s future in ways that could not be predicted. The ongoing difficulties in
maintaining accreditation by the Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education had
seemingly come to an unfortunate end; but the enactment of HB 2466 provided an
unexpected, unhoped for opportunity for Hillsdale. The new law provides for the
recognition of Hillsdale’s accreditation status with the Transnational Association of
Christian Colleges and Schools (TRACS). TRACS is authorized by the United
States Secretary of Education to accredit colleges that meet acceptable accreditation
standards. Hillsdale was granted reaccreditation status (candidacy) by TRACS in
1995.

The Board of Trustees and the administration are resolved to pursue the
improvement and advancement of the college, thus fulfilling the vision of our
founders and serving our church and youth. With the resolution of the accreditation
crisis, the college’s leadership can now devote its undivided attention to the business
of interpreting and enacting the mission of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College.
Wise planning, fiscal responsibility, and diligent work-these are the commitments
that the college makes to Oklahoma Free Will Baptists. But, caution cannot exclude
the willingness to dream and to take the risks that will lead Hillsdale into its most
glorious days.

The partnership between Hillsdale Free Will Baptists has produced an
impact on our world that far exceeds what might be expected of a small college.
The question, “Is it worth it?”, is a worthy consideration, and the answer is “Yes!”
Nearly forty years ago, Oklahoma Free Will Baptists decided that they could not
afford to neglect the training of our youth for life and service in God’s kingdom, and
God has blessed that decision. May we continue in partnership for the cause of
Christ and Christian higher education.

James Puckett Jim Shepherd
Chairman President
Board of Trustees Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE
AUDITOR'’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF THE BASIC
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 15, 1996
To the Board of Directors,

We have audited basic financial statements of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist
College as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996 and have issued our report
thereon dated August 15, 1996.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally auditing standards;
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

The management of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling this
responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the
expected benefits and related costs of internal control policies and procedures. The
objectives of an internal control structure are to provide management with
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are executed in accordance
with management’s authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors,
irregularities, or instances of noncompliance may nevertheless occur and not be
detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the structure of future periods is
subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and
procedures may deteriorate.

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of
Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College for the year ended June 30, 1996, we obtained
an understanding of the College’s internal control structure. With respect to the
internal control structure, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant
policies and procedures and whether they have been placed in operation, and we
assessed control risk in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control structure. Accordingly, we do no express such an
opinion.

Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might be reportable
conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions
that are also considered to be material weaknesses.
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We also noted other matters involving the internal control structure and its
operation that we have reported to the management of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist
College, in a separate letter dated August 16, 1996.

This report is intended solely for the use of management and the U.S,
Department of Education. However, this report is a matter of public record, and its
distribution is not limited.

Havern, Behrens, Heim & Byford, CPA’S

HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE
AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 15, 1996
To the Board of Directors

We have audited the basic financial statements of Hillsdale Free Will
Baptist College as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issued our
report thereon dated August 15, 1996.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, and the June 1996 Audit Guide, Compliance Audits of Federal
Student Financial Assistance Programs at Participating Institutions, issued by the
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Inspector General. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

Compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College is the responsibility of the College’s
management. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatements, we performed tests of the College’s
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants.
However, the objective of our audit of the basic statements was not to provide and
opinion on overall compliance with such provisions. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are
required to be reported herein under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended for the information of the audit committee,
management, and the U.S. Department of Education. However, this report is a
matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

Havern, Behrens, Heim & Byford, CPA’s
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 1995 AND 1994

ASSETS 1996 1995
CURRENT FUND
Unrestricted:
Cash $ 4,805 $ 3377
Student accounts receivable,
net of allowance for bad
debt of (Note 8) 89,435 100,703
Other receivables 3,558 -
Bookstore inventory 18,696 16,295
Office supplies 2219 1.383
Total Unrestricted 118.713 121,758
Temporarily Restricted:
Cash 20,701 17,237
Loans to students, net of allowance
for bad debt of $11,857
(Note 8) 9,403 17,651
Total Temporarily Restricted 30,104 34,888
Permanently Restricted:
Cash 180,129 33,266
Investments (Note 2) 10,728 152,262
190,857 185,528
TOTAL CURRENT FUNDS $ 339,674 $ 342,174
PERKINS LOAN FUND (Note 3)
Cash $ 9,291 $ 5444
Notes receivable, net of
allowance of $114,080 268,232 276,821
Total Loan Fund $ 277,523 $ 282265
PELL FUND $ - $ -

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT FUND 1996 1995
Unrestricted:
Accounts payable $ 19,192 $ 28,121

43




Payable to Endowment Fund (Note 6)
Unrestricted Net Assets
Total Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted:
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:
Scholarship funds
Restricted gifts
Total Temporarily Restricted
Net Assets

Permanently Restricted:
Permanently Restricted Net Assets
Scholarships
Total Permanently Restricted
Total Current Funds

PERKINS LOAN FUND (Note 3)
Net assets
Total Loan Fund

PELL FUND

ENDOWMENT FUND (Note 4)
Cash
Due from current fund (Note 6)
Investments
Total Endowment Fund

PLANT FUNDS
Unexpended plant fund
Cash
Total unexpended plant fund

Investment in plant (Note 1)
Land
Buildings
Land improvements
Equipment
Library books

Total investment in plant fund

Less: accumulated depreciation

44

137,500 137,500
(37.979) (43.863)
118.713 121,758

29,779 31,632
325 3.256
30,104 34,888
190,857 185,528
190.857 185.528
339.674 342.174
$271.523 $282.265

$277.523 $ 282265

$ - $ -

$ 19,015 $ 55438
137,500 137,500

87.407 49,831
$243.922 $242.769

$ 35 § 35

$ 35 35

55,000 55,000
1,878.841 1,878.841
164,938 164,938
581,687 539,120
114.375 98.037
2794841 2,735,936
(1.435988)  (1.375.331



Investment in plant fund 1,358,853 1,360,605
Total Plant Funds $1,358.888  $1.360.640
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
1996 1995
ENDOWMENT FUND (Note 4)
Permanently Restricted
Net Assets $243.922 $ 242,769
Total Endowment Fund $ 243,922 $ 242,769
PLANT FUND
Unexpended plant fund
Net assets $ 35 $ 35
Total unexpended plant fund 35 35
Investment in plant
Notes payable (Note 5) 304,095 321,413
Net investment in plant (Note 9) 1.054.758 1,039,192
Total Investment in Plant 1,358,853 1,360,605
Total Plant Funds $1,358.888 $ 1,360,640
ILLSDALE ILL, BAPTI LLEGE ST. T
OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996
Permanently
CURRENT FUND Restricted
Temporarily Permanently Endowment
REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS
Unrestricted current fund revenues $ 699,641 $ - $ - $ -
Private gifts - restricted - 11,813 5,329 1,095
Private gifts - unrestricted 872,271 - - 12,378
Federal funding & matching 28,129 - - -
Interest income and other 43,766 5,049 -
Interest income on loans receivable - - - -
Net assets released from restrictions 33967 (21.647) - (12,320)
Total revenues and other additions 1,672,774 (4,785) 5.329 1,153
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS
Educational and general expenditures 1,153,072 - - -
Auxiliary enterprises 232,202
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Student aid expenditures 210,222 - - .

Office expense - - -

Student loan defaults - - -

Administrative cost - - -

Depreciation - - - .
Total expenditures and other deductions 1,595,496 - - .
TRANSFERS AMONG FUNDS

Transfer to investment in plant fund (76,393) - - .
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) FOR THE YEAR 5.885 (4,785) 5.329 153
NET ASSETS, JULY 1, 1995 (43,864) 34,889 _185.528 242,769
NET ASSETS, JUNE 30, 1996 $ (37979 $__30.104 $190,857 § 24390

HILLSDALE FREE L BAPTIST TATEMENT

F ACTIVITIE NT D
FQR THE YEAR ENDED E30.1

REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS
Unrestricted current fund revenues

Private gifts - restricted

Private gifts - unrestricted

Federal funding & matching

Interest income and other

Interest income on loans receivable
Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenues and other additions

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS
Educational and general expenditures
Auxiliary enterprises
Student aid expenditures
Office expense
Student loan defaults
Administrative cost
Depreciation

Total expenditures and other deductions

TRANSFERS AMONG FUNDS
Transfer to investment in plant fund

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) FOR THE YEAR
NET ASSETS, JULY 1, 1995

NET ASSETS, JUNE 30, 1996

Plant Fund Perkins

Investment Loan Pell
_Unexpended _InPlant = _Fund  _ Fund

$ - $ - $ -5 -
- - 2389 125,506

- - 75 .

- - 7,893 -
- - 10,357 125.506
- - - 125,506

- - 642 -

- - 12,884 .

- - 1,574 .

- 60,828 - -
. 60,828 15,100 125,509

- 76,393 - .

- 15.565 (4.743) -

35 1,039,193 282.265 -

$ 35 0 51054758 0§ 277522 § -
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1995

1996 1995
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Increase (decrease) in
net assets $ 16,666 $ (127,122)
Adjustments to reconcile
increase in net assets to net
cash flows from net operating
activities:
Depreciation 60,657 52,110
(Increase) Decrease in
current assets:
Accounts receivable 15,958 67,728
Inventory (3,235) (4,383)
Increase (Decrease) in
current liabilities:
Accounts payable (8,929) (37,980)
Payables to other funds - 137.500
Total adjustments 64.451 214,975
Total cash flows from
operating activities 81,117 87,853
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of equipment (58.907) (58.394)
Total cash flows from (used in)
investing activities , (58.907) (58,394)
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from newly issued
long-term debt 303,000 -
Principal payment on
long-term debt (320,318) (29.388)
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Total cash flows (used in) from

financing activities (17.318) (29,388)

Total increase (decrease) 4,892 71
Cash at the beginning of the year 20,614 20,543
Cash at the end of the year $ 25506 $§ 20614

Cash consists of:
Current Fund
Unrestricted $ 4,805 $ 3,377
Temporarily restricted 20,701 17,237
$ 25506 $ 20614

HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1995

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
General - The significant accounting policies followed by the Hillsdale
Free Will Baptist College (the College) are described below to enhance the
usefulness of the financial statements to the reader.
Accrual Basis - The financial statements of the Hillsdale Free Will Baptist
College have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. The statement of
current funds revenues, expenditures, and other changes is a statement of financial

activities of current funds related to the current reporting period. It does not

purport to present the results of operations or the net income or loss for the period
as would a statement of income or a statement of revenues and expenses.

Fund Accounting - To ensure observation of limitations and restrictions
placed on the use of the available resources, the accounts of the College are
maintained in accordance with principles of “fund accounting.” This is the
procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified for accounting
and reporting purposes into funds that are in accordance with activities or
objectives specified. Separate accounts are maintained for each funds. However,
in the accompanying financial statements, funds that have similar characteristics
have been combined into fund groups. Accordingly, all financial transactions have
been recorded and reported by fund group.

Investment in plant - Investments recorded in the plant are recorded at
cost. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over estimated
useful lives of assets as summarized below:
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Buildings 20 to 50 years

Land Improvements 20 years
Equipment 3 - 15 years
Library Books 10 years

Tax Exempt Status - The College is exempt from income taxation under
Internal Revenue Code Section 501 © (3).

Cash - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on
hand and cash in checking and savings accounts of the current unrestricted and
temporarily restricted funds.

Implementation of FAS #116 and #117 - The College has implemented
FAS #116 which among other things distinguishes between contributions that
increase permanently restricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and
unrestricted net assets. The College has also implemented FAS #117, which
requires the three basic financial statements presented and the schedule of
functional expenses. The College has classified gifts where the donor has imposed
restrictions as either permanently restricted or temporarily restricted net assets of
the current fund. Endowment funds by nature are permanently restricted. Loan
funds and grant funds are not classified into the three classes.

NOTE 2 - INVESTMENTS

Investments are recorded at cost. As of June 30, 1996 and 1995,
investments of the current permanently restricted funds were composed of the
following:

1996 1995
Bond Unit Investment Trust $10,728 $ 2,934
Certificates of Deposit - 149,328
Total Investments $10.728 $152.262

NOTE 3 - PERKINS LOAN FUND
The loan fund reflects activity with respect to the Perkins Student Loan

program which is funded primarily by the Department of Education. The College
provides matching funds equal to one-ninth of the federal funds received.

NOTE 4 - ENDOWMENT FUND

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1983, the governing board of the
College determined that certain funds were to be retained and invested as an
endowment. The board stipulated that the principal is to remain invested and the
interest income is to be placed in the current unrestricted fund. Gifts to the
Endowment Fund totaled $1,095 and $1,752 for fiscal year ending June 30, 1996
and 1995, respectively.

The following is a schedule of the book values and market values of
investment in the Endowment Fund:
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Investment:
Certificate of Deposit
and Savings
Treasury Bill Money Fund
Limited Partnership
Bond UIT

NOTE 5 - NOTES PAYABLE

June 30, 1996
Book Market
Value Value

$ 1,000 § 1,000
41,783 41,783
39,324 20,010

5,300 _5.300

$ 87.407 $ 68,093

June 30,1995
Book Market
Value Value
$ 1,000 $ 1,000

43,239 22,185

2 474

$49.8318 28,659

As of June 30, 1996 and 1995, the College had the followmg long-
term notes payable in the Plant Fund:

Prime + .5% variable rate
Mortgage payable to bank,

due in monthly payments of
$3,885 through 1-29-06, secured

by real estate.

8.0% note payable to a bank,
due in monthly payments of
$3,860 through April, 1996,
collateralized by real estate.

10% mortgage payable to a

bank, due in monthly

installments of $483 through
December, 1999 collateralized

by real estate.

7% note payable to a bank,
due in monthly installments
of $558 through November

1996, unsecured.

5% note payable to affiliated

organization, no maturity,

unsecured.

Total Notes Payable

50

logs
$ 296,814 $ -

286,206

21,670

2,744 9,000

4,537 4,537

$304005  $321413



The following is a summary of the principal due in the next five years and
thereafter:

For the Year Ended

June 30, Amount

1997 $ 21,300

1998 23,327

1999 25,547

2000 30,635

2001 33,550

Thereafter 169.736

Total Notes Payable $304.095

NOTE 6 - CURRENT FUND BORROWING

Loans from the Current Restricted Fund and from the Endowment Fund
were made to cover negative cash flows in the Current Unrestricted Fund at various
times during the last six fiscal years. As of June 30, 1996, all funds borrowed from
the Current Restricted Fund had been fully repaid from Current Unrestricted Fund,
however, the Current Unrestricted Fund was indebted to the Endowment Fund for
$137,500.

NOTE 7 - TAX SHELTERED ANNUITY PROGRAM

The College offers a tax sheltered annuity program to its permanent
employees under Internal Revenue Code Section 403 (b). Employees can make
elected contributions and the College matches up to 5% of the employees salary.
For the year ending June 30, 1996 and 1995, the College made matching
contributions of $21,600 and $15,872, respectively to the participants accounts.

NOTE 8 - LOANS TO STUDENTS
During fiscal years ended June 30, 1996 and 1995, the College made

loans to students from temporarily restricted donations. Proceeds from the
repayment of these loans will be used for future student loans.
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OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST
CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD REPORT

The Christian Education Board ministered to the needs of Oklahoma Free
Will Baptist through seven different events this past year. There were over 2,300
in attendance with several saved and a number of rededications and decisions.

Our 2nd Great Youth Escape was held in two cities on September 9, 1995.
The First Free Will Baptist Church of McAlester hosted 127 teens and juniors with
Randall Ray and Greg Cleveland speaking to these young people. The New Home
Free Will Baptist Church of Tulsa was the site of 230 young people who heard Bro.
Toby Youngblood speak to the teens while the juniors heard Bro. Danny Phillips.
Three “escapes” are planned, at press time, for September 14, 1996.

Fountainhead Resort, on Lake Eufaula, was the site of the State Youth
Conference. It was held on December 28-29, 1995 with Roy Dale Smith, Brad
Ransom, Russell Payne and Joey Wilson speaking at the four different sessmns
There were 315 in attendance this year.

Our seventh Teen Leadership Conference was held at the Rejoice Free
Will Baptist Church in Owasso. Jerry Kasse, Joe Grizzle and Scot Bullman spoke
to the teens on the different topics of leadership. There were 43 teens in
attendance. The conference was held March 8-9, 1996. ‘?

The Senior Adult Retreat continues to be one of our most exciting events
of the year. This year it also showed the greatest increase in attendance. Bill Jones
and J.C. Morgan preached and the Oklahoma Minister’s Quartet sang to 200 senior
adults. The retreat was held at Western Hills Lodge, near Wagoner, on March 18-
20, 1996.

The 1996 State C.T.S. competition was held on the campus of O.B.U. on
May 11, 1996. Over 600 people competed or observed 202 entries compete.
Oklahoma was represented by 82 entries at the National Youth Conference held in
Fort Worth, TX on July 21-24, 1996. Katie Beam, from the Bethany Free Will
Baptist Church, was selected for the National Youth Evangelistic Team. Katie was
also selected as the female young person of the year. The youth group from
Norman First Free Will Baptist Church was selected as Youth Group of the Year
at the National. Bro. Joey Wilson is their Youth Pastor. Congratulations to both
Katie and this Youth Group.

State Youth Camp was held June 17-21, 1996 at the Kiamichi Baptist
Association Campgrounds. Once again we were able to combine the juniors and
teens into one week. A total of 667 campers and sponsors attended camp this year.
Bruce Bennett preached for the Junior camp while Collision Ministries (Kevin
Riggs, Evangelist; Mike Hollifield, Music) conducted the teen services. Thirty-
nine young people were saved and made other decisions for Christ.

The Oklahoma Land Run is still underway. Many of our young people
are raising and saving money for this important mission project. We made our first
disbursement of those funds this year:

$5,000 going to the orphanage in Brazil
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$2,500 going to the land fund in Overland Park, KS

$2,500 going to the El Reno Mission Church
We challenge all of our young people to get involved in this mission project.

Paul Allen is no longer serving the board as promotional secretary or as
a technical advisor. We appreciate all that Paul did for our board during the years
he served on the board and was employed by the board.

We are thankful for all the Lord’s blessings on our ministry this past year.
We desire your prayers and your input.
Roy Dale Smith, Chairman

OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST
CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS
‘ DEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
August 26, 1996

We have audited the accompanying statement of assets, liabilities, and net
assets - cash basis of the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists
Christian Education Board (the Board) as of June 30, 1996 and 1995, and the
related statements of revenues, expenses, and other changes in net assets - cash
basis for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Board’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

1 We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing

* standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

- reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As described in Note 1, these financial statements were prepared on the
cash basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than
generally accepted accounting principles.

3 As further discussed in Note 4 to the financial statements, during the year
“ended June 30, 1996 the Board changed its method of accounting for contributions
and its method of financial reporting and financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,

- in all material respects, the assets, liabilities and net assets of the Oklahoma State

Association Christian Education Board as of June 30, 1996 and 1995, and the
< revenues, expenses and other changes in net assets for the years then ended, on the
- basis of accounting described in Note 1.

- Ha{vem, Behrens, Heim & Byford, CPA’s
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OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST
CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD BALANCE SHEET
STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES
AND NET ASSETS - CASH BASIS
JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1995

ASSETS 1996 1995
Cash
Unrestricted $ 8,505 $ 5,213
Restricted 110 2,338
8,615 7,551
Equipment 2,782 -
Less: Accumulated depreciation (464) -
: 2,318 -
TOTAL ASSETS $10,933 $ 15,102

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Unrestricted
Net assets $10,823 $ 5213
Restricted
Net assets 110 2,338
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND NET ASSETS $ 10,933 $ 7,551

OKILAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST
CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD STATEMENT OF
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
AND OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - CASH BASIS
YEARS ENDING JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1995

1996 1995
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS '
Support
Programs sponsored
Competition Fees 3,716 2,812
96 Youth Camp Fees 28,958 -
95 Youth Camp Fees 5,660 28,909
94 Youth Camp Fees - 3,322
Youth Conference Fees 11,321 9,239
Teen Leadership Conference 1,450 1,215
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Ministers Retreat Fees - 608
Senior Adult Retreat Fees 9,250 2,944
Youth Escape Fees 1,097 1,521
61,452 50,570
General Support
Cooperative giving 23,314 23,137
Designated giving 1,566 1,754
Interest income 753 71
Total unrestricted support 25,633 24,962
Net assets released from donor
restrictions 10,000 72
Total unrestricted support and
reclassifications 97,085 75,604
Expenses
Programs sponsored
96 Youth Camp 31,427 -
95 Youth Camp 451 32,865
94 Youth Camp - 6,540
Youth Conference 12,105 - 8,360
Oklahoma Land Run promotion 10,000 ' 72
Competition 4,184 4,740
Senior Adult Retreat 14,536 2,790 1
Youth Escape 1,200 1,571 i
Ministers Retreat - 1,496 1
Teen Leadership Retreat 990 821 i
74,893 59,255 :;
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
General and administrative
Salaries 3,550 5,500
Board expense 5,402 6,448
Postage and Printing 1,113 1,946
Telephone and Office Supplies 1,692 1,074
Audit 550 550
Promoter page 3,500 -
Depreciation 464 -
Convention and other _ 311 500
16,582 16,018
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 5,610 331
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TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS ‘
Oklahoma land run promotion 7,772 T 2,338

Net assets released from donor

restrictions (10,000) (72)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED .

NET ASSETS (2.228) 2.266
TOTAL INCREASE IN

NET ASSETS 3,382 2,597
NET ASSETS, Beginning 7.551 _ 4954

NET ASSETS, Ending 10,933 7.551

OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST -

CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD NOTES
TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 1996 AND 1996

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists Christian
Education Board is an auxiliary function of the State Association of Free Will
Baptists created to assist in the establishment of Free Will Baptist churches in the
state of Oklahoma. The Christian Education Board does not combine their
financial statements with those of the State Association of Free Will Baptists
because meaningful information would not result from presentmg combined
financial statements.

To ensure observance of certain constraints and restrictions placed on the
use of resources, the accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of
fund accounting. Net assets, representing resources to be utilized for various
purposes, are classified for accounting and reporting purposes in accordance with
the nature of the donors’ restrictions, when applicable.

The Board’s policy is to prepare its financial statements on the cash basis
of accounting; consequently, certain revenues are recognized when received rather
than when earned, and certain expenses are recognized when cash is paid rather
than when the obligation is incurred. There were no material receivables or
payables at year end.

Equipment items are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which is
3 years. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to operations when
incurred while major betterments and renewals are capitalized.
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The Board is exempt from federal and state income taxation under Section
501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

The Board receives a percentage of the cooperative giving program
sponsored by the State Association of Free Will Baptists.

Restricted cash represents unexpended restricted donations.

(2) RESTRICTED FUNDS

The Board sponsored a fund raising program and received $7,772 of
restricted contributions. The purpose of the contributions is for missions.

(3) RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been
reclassified for comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the
current-year financial statements,

(4) CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The State Association elected to adopt Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 116, Accounting for Contributions and SFAS No. 117,
Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations as of June 30, 1996. In
accordance with SFAS No. 116, contributions received are recorded as
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support depending
on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. Under SFAS No. 116,
such contributions are required to be reported as temporarily restricted support and
are then reclassified to unrestricted net assets upon fulfillment of the donor’s
specifications. Under SFAS No. 117, the State Association is required to report
information regarding its financial position activities according to three classes of
net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted net assets. This reclassification had no effect on net assets for the year
ended June 30, 1996. In addition, the State Association to present a Statement of
Cash Flows. As permitted by this new Statement, the State Association has
discontinued its use of fund accounting and has, accordingly, reclassified its
financial statements to present the three classes of net assets required.

OKIL.AHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST
CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD

PROPOSED BUDGET

1997-1998
RECEIPTS:
Cooperative Giving $ 22,800
Designated Giving 1,700
Competition Fees 4,000
Youth Camp Fees 35,000
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Youth Conference Fees 11,500

Teen Leadership Conference Fees 1,500 -
Senior Adult Retreat Fees 10,000
Youth Escape Fees 1,200
Land Run Mission Gifts 50,000
Bank Interest 150
T-Shirt Income 5600
TOTAL RECEIPTS ' $ 143,450
DISBURSEMENTS:
Board Expense $ 5,350
Competition 5,000
Youth Camp 36,000
Telephone and Office Expenses 1,000
Youth Conference 12,300
Postage and Printing 1,500
Promoter Page 3,600
Audit 600
Teen Leadership Conference 1,800
Senior Adult Retreat 10,500
Secretary 6,000
Clerk/Treas. Salary 1,200
Convention 0
Capital Expenses 500
Youth Escape Expenses 1,500
Land Run Expenses 500
Land Run Mission Gifts 50,000
T-Shirt Expense : 6,100
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS $ 143,450

HISTORICAL COMMISSION REPORT

The primary purpose of the Historical Commission is to collect and
preserve important historical information about Free Will Baptists, and particularly
about Free Will Baptists in Oklahoma. The Commission also seeks to encourage
research and writing in Free Will Baptist history.

The Historical Commission had one official meeting this year to review
our progress and make plans for next year. During this past year we continued
collecting past and present copies of national, state, and district minutes. We have
also collected copies of Contact, Heartbeat, The Promoter, and other Free Will
Baptist publications. We also obtained a rack which can be used for storing
cassette tapes of historical interest. During the past year, the secretary has
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responded to requests for information from several individuals. Generally these
requests come from people who want to know what information the Historical
Commission has on a particular subject.

During 1996-97 we plan to work on the following projects.

1. We plan to work with Mrs. Nancy Draper, Director of the Hillsdale
Learning Resource Center, to develop written guidelines for collecting, preserving,
and using the historical materials in the historical collection.

2. We plan to continue expanding our collection of state and district
minutes from Oklahoma. We have a list of minutes which are lacking in the
collection, and we invited Free Will Baptists to donate any of these minutes which
they may have to the collection.

3. We plan to continue collecting historical information about Oklahoma
Free Will Baptists, local churches, and district associations to be included in the
vertical file. Free Will Baptists are encouraged to donate any type of written
historical information which can be included in the file.

4. We plan to write every district clerk in Oklahoma encouraging him or
her to send a copy of the district minutes to the historical commission each year.

5. We plan to encourage local churches and associations to prepare
histories. We will certainly make any information we have available to them. We
would like to have a copy of the written history to be included in the historical
collections.

6. We need some help from Free Will Baptists in arranging and
organizing the historical collection. If you have some time you would like to
donate to this project, please contact the secretary.

We have not spent any funds this past year, but we will need some funds
to complete the projects we are planning for next year. We request a budget of
$500.00 again this year. These funds are to come through the state office budget.

Thank you for your support of the commission and its work. If we can do
anything to be of service to you, please let us know. The address is:

Oklahoma Historical Commission

¢/o Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College

P.O. Box 7208

Moore, OK 73153-1208

Rev. Edwin L. Wade, Chairman Dr. Thomas L. Marberry, Clerk

Rev. Ray Gwzirtney, Member
Mrs. Nancy Draper, Director of the Hillsdale Learning Resource Center
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THE FREE WILL BAPTIST MASTER’ MEN
State of Oklahoma

CONSTITUTION

Section 1. The executive committee shall consist of the elected officers
of this organization and they shall serve as the program committee for each annual
convention.

Section 2. Ex-officio members of the executive committee shall be the
presidents of the district associations of Master’s Men, presidents of any local
chapter where there is only one chapter int he district, and the state executive
secretary of the State Association of Free Will Baptists.

ARTICLEV
MEETINGS

This organization shall meet annually at 7:30 p.m. on Monday night
before the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists convenes.

ARTICLE VI
AMENDMENTS

This constitution may be amended by a two-thirds vote of any regular
meeting.

BY-LAWS
VOTING RIGHTS

Section 1. Every member of each affiliated district association, or any
local chapter where there is only one chapter in the district, is eligible to vote on
all questions and matters that might come before the Free Will Baptist Master’s
Men, State of Oklahoma.

COMMITTEES

Section 2. The executive committee shall transact all routine business and
shall act for the organization in the interim between meetings.

Section 3. The executive committee shall meet at the call of the president.

Section 4. A nominating committee, for the annual election of officers,
shall be composed of the presidents of each district association, and the president
of any local chapter where there is only one chapter in the district.
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Section 5. The president shall appoint all other committees, subject to the
approval of the body.
FINANCE -

Section 6. This organization shall be financed on the basis of offerings,
dues and assessments.

QUORUM

Section 7. One-tenth of the members of this organization shall constitute
a quorum at any regular meeting.

AMENDMENTS

Section 8. These by-laws may be amended at any fegular meeting by a
two-thirds vote of the members present.

* As adopted by the Free Will Baptist Master’s Men, State of Oklahoma,
annual session in Muskogee, Oklahoma, October 19; 1970.
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MINISTER’S CONFERENCE
CONSTITUTION
ARTICLE ]
The Minister’s Conference shall be called the Oklahoma State Free Will

Baptist Minister’s Conference, and shall be composed of Ordained Free Will
Baptist Ministers who are regular member of some orthodox Free Will Baptist
Church in the State of Oklahoma who have paid their dues.

ARTICLEIl |

The officers of this conference shall be President, Vice-President, and
Clerk-Treasurer, who shall be elected annually.

ARTICLE III
This conference shall have the power to discipline its members.
ARTICLE IV
Members of this organization shall be ordained ministers who participate
in the benefits and activities of this body, and associate members who become
members by payment of the annual dues.
ARTICLE YV
This conference shall meet annually.

ARTICLE VI

This constitution may be amended by a two-thirds vote of the members
present at any regular session.

BY-LAWS
ARTICLE I
The clerk or assistant clerk, or in their absence the senior minister in
years, shall call the ministers into conference. If a quorum is present, the President

or in his absence, the Vice-President, shall moderate the meeting. If neither of
those are present, the senior minister in years shall be in charge.
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ARTICLE I

It shall be the duty of the clerk to enroll ministers of the conference.
Ministers shall present themselves with proper evidence of their rights to seats
therein, and those enrolled by the clerk shall compose the conference. In case of
questionable representation, the case under question shall be referred to the
Credential Committee.

ARTICLE II

It shall be the duty of each minister belonging to this conference, to be
active in pastoral or evangelistic services (disabled or retired ministers excepted).
Any minister belonging to this conference shall report in each session in person or
by letter, and failing to do so for two successive sessions shall be subject to
discipline.

ARTICLE IV

Each conference shall be opened by reading a portion of God’s word and
prayer, and each session shall be closed with prayer.

ARTICLE V

By two-thirds vote of the members present, ruling of the President may
be overruled.

ARTICLE VI

This conference shall sit with open doors, except when it shall go into a
committee as a whole.

ARTICLE VII

No member shall be absent himself from the conference during its
meeting without permission from the President.

ARTICLE VIl

No person shall be allowed to nominate more than one member of a
committee, unless person nominated is not elected.

ARTICLE IX

The President shall not allow discussion when not carried on in a Christian
spirit, or when he thinks it will cause discord.
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ARTICLE X

Anyone desiring to speak shall arise and address the President by
appellation “Brother President”, but shall not speak further until recognized.

ARTICLE XI

No member of this conference shall be allowed to speak more than five
minutes, nor twice on the same subject without permission from the President.

ARTICLE XII

These By-Laws may be altered or amended at any regular or adjourned
session of this conference by a two-thirds vote of members present.
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AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS OF
HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE, INC.

These Amended and Restated Bylaws were duly adopted by the Board of
Trustees, in its regular meeting held on May 5, 1994, pursuant to Section VII of the
original Bylaws, and amend in their entirety the original Bylaws which were
heretofore adopted.

ARTICLE I
POWERS OF TRUSTEES
Section 1.

The Board of Trustees shall have the power to manage the property and
business of the Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Inc. (referred to in this and the
following articles as the "College") and shall have the power to carry out any other
functions which are permitted by the Charter, or these Bylaws, except insofar as
such powers may be limited by law. These powers shall include but shall not be
limited to the following:

(I)  Appoint or remove the President and/or other officers of the
College in accordance with these Bylaws;

(ii) Approve degrees in courses upon recommendations of the
faculty;

(iii) Approve the -awarding of honorary degrees upon
recommendation of any of the following: Faculty, President, or
appropriate Board committee;

(iv)  Establish and review the educational programs of the College
after review by the Board Committee on Academic Affairs, or
by special committees of review set up by the President and
Chairman of the Board in a financial emergency situation;

(v)  Establish annually the budget of the College, which shall be
submitted to it upon recommendation of the Board Business
Affairs Committee;

(vi)  Authorize the construction of new buildings and major
renovations of existing buildings;

(vi))  Authorize the sale and purchase of land, buildings or major
equipment for the use of the College;

(viii)  Institute and promote the major fund-raising efforts of

the College;
(ix)  Authorize any changes in tuition and fees within the
College;
(x)  Authorize officers or agents of the College to accept gifts for the

College;

(XI) Authorize the incurring of debts by the College and securing
thereof by mortgage and pledge of the real, personal, tangible
and/or intangible property;
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(ix) Any other duties or responsibilities which obtain to it under the
Charter of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Inc.

Section 2.

The Board of Trustees of the College shall not launch any expansion
project, major expenditure of capital funds, creation of debt for capital needs, or
any significant change in usual operations except upon prior authority given by the
Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists or the Executive Board thereof.

ARTICLE IT
MEMBERSHIP OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Section 1.

The Board of Trustees of the College shall consist of seventeen (17)
members. Ten (10) of the members shall be elected by the delegates to the annual
convention of The Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists, each of
which shall serve for a term of five (5) years and until his/her successor is duly
elected and qualified. These members shall serve staggering terms such that two
(2) members shall be elected at each annual convention of The Oklahoma State
Association of Free Will Baptists. The remaining seven (7) members shall be
elected by the following State Associations of Free Will Baptists and shall serve
for such terms as may be established by their respective state associations, to wit:
Arkansas, two (2) members; Missouri, three (3) members; and Texas, two (2)
members.

Section 2.

Vacancies of the Board of Trustees shall occur through resignation,
ceasing to be a resident of the state by which he/she is elected, death of a trustee,
or as the result of his/her inability or failure to act. Should a vacancy on the Board
of Trustees occur during the interval between the annual sessions of the State
Association by which the trustee has been elected, the vacancy may be filled at the
next annual session of such State Association, by the Executive Board of such State
Association, or as may be otherwise prescribed or directed by such State
Association.

In the event any member misses two (2) consecutive meetings of the

Board of Trustees without giving advance notification to the office of the President
of the College, the member shall be considered as having resigned.

66

o



Section 3.

No person shall be eligible for election prior to attaining the age of
twenty-one (21) years.

Section 4.

Any member of the Board of Trustees may be removed from office, for
cause, by action of the State Association, or Executive Board thereof, which
elected such member.

ARTICLE II1
OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND
HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE, INC.

Section 1.

The officers of the Board of Trustees shall consist of the Chairman of the
Board of Trustees, Vice-Chairman, Secretary, and Assistant Secretary, all of whom
shall be elected annually by the Board of Trustees. For the purpose of executing
legal documents in compliance with Oklahoma Law, the office of Chairman of the
Board of Trustees shall be synonymous with the office of President of the
Corporation, Vice Chairman with the office of Vice President of the Corporation,
and Secretary with the office of Secretary of the Corporation, and Assistant
Secretary with the office of Assistant Secretary of the Corporation.

Section 2.

All officers of the Board of Trustees shall hold office as such officer for
a period of one year, or until their successors are duly elected and qualified.

Section 3.

The President of the College shall be an ex officio member of the Board
without power to vote and shall not be counted as a member of the Board, or any
committee on which he/she may serve, for any purpose. The Vice President of
Business Affairs of the College shall serve as Treasurer of the Corporation and as
such shall be an ex officio member of the Board without power to vote and shall
not be counted a member of the Board or any committee on which he may serve
for any purpose.
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Section 4.

The Board may appoint one or more vice chairmen, assistant secretaries,
and such other officers as may be deemed necessary for the proper management
of the affairs of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Inc.

Section 5.

All officers of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Inc. shall hold office
at the discretion of the Board of Trustees and shall be subject to removal by
affirmative vote of a majority of the entire membership of the Board of Trustees,
without prejudice to any contract rights such officer may have against the College.

ARTICLE IV
POWERS AND DUTIES OF OFFICERS

Section 1.

The Chairman of the Board of Trustees shall preside at all meetings of the
Board of Trustees, sign all deeds, contracts, bonds, mortgages, and other papers
evidencing the official acts of the Board of Trustees where the signature of a
presiding officer is required by these Bylaws or by custom or practice, and he/she
shall call all special meetings of the Board of Trustees, give notice of the time and
place of all meetings of the Board of Trustees as herein provided, appoint all
committees and generally exercise such authority as is usually exercised by a
chairman or president of the Board of Trustees of a non-profit corporation. He/She
shall also perform any other and further duties as may be assigned to the Chairman
by the Board of Trustees.

Section 2.

The Vice Chairman of the Board of Trustees shall perform all the duties
of the office of Chairman of the Board of Trustees in the absence of the Chairman
of the Board of Trustees, or as a result of the inability of the Chairman of the Board
of Trustees to act because of sickness, misfortune, casualty, or emergency absence.

Section 3.
N The Secretary of the Board of Trustees shall keep minutes of the meetings
of the Board, issue, or cause to be issued, notices of meetings under the direction

of the Chairman, have charge of the seal of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College,
Inc. and affix attest the same to all instruments which may require that the
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corporate seal be affixed; and shall perform the duties usually performed by a
secretary of the Board of Trustees of a non-profit corporation. He/She shall also
perform any other duties which may be assigned to the Secretary by the Board of
Trustees.

Section 4.

The Secretary of the Board of Trustees, with the approval of the Board of
Trustees and the President of the College, may authorize an officer of the College
and/or a person other than the Secretary of the Board of Trustees to affix the
corporate seal to any diploma, transcript, or other instrument having to do with the
administration of the affairs of the College, and to exercise the administration of
the affairs of the College, and to exercise the same authority with regard to the
affixing of the corporate seal to such instrument as may be exercised by the
Secretary of the Board of Trustees.

Section 5.

The Assistant Secretary shall perform all the duties of the Secretary of the
Board of Trustees in the absence of the Secretary, or in the event of the inability
of the Secretary to attend a meeting of the Board of Trustees, or as a result of the
inability of the Secretary to act because of sickness, misfortune, casualty, or
emergency.

Section 6.

The Treasurer shall be the Chief Financial Officer of the College and shall

.be, as Treasurer, an ex officio member of the Board of Trustees without power to
:vote and shall not be counted as a member of the Board. He/She shall have the
duty to keep, or cause to be kept, full and accurate accounts of all receipts and
disbursements and to follow the directives of the Trustees, the President of the
College and the Business Affairs Committee respecting funds, property, and
accounts of the College. He/She shall be responsible for the preparation of any
corporate financial reports as may be required by departments of federal or state
government. The Treasurer shall, in the name of the College, give receipts for

monies or property as shall be required, deposit funds in accordance with

resolution and direction of the Business Affairs Committee or the Board of

Trustees, and safeguard the money of the College. He/She shall not pay out any
money except by direction of the Board of Trustees or under such regulations or

with such approval as the Business Affairs Committee may prescribe. He/She shall

cooperate with any independent auditors or certified public accountants retained

by the Board of Trustees for the purpose of conducting audits of the accounts of

the College, and shall make reports at meetings of the Board of Trustees or the

Business Affairs Committee with respect to the financial condition of the College
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at such time and in such form as the Board or the Committee may require. The
Treasurer shall give a bond to the College to faithfully perform the duties of his/her
office, and to account for all monies and other matters and things which may come
into his/her hands and possession by virtue of said office, in such amount as the
Business Affairs Committee shall direct.

ARTICLE V
POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE COLLEGE

Section 1.

The affairs of the College shall be administered by the President of the
College, who shall be elected by the Board of Trustees and hold office at the
pleasure of the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees shall adopt a system of
periodic evaluations for the purpose of evaluating the performance of the President
and to, among other things, set the salary and compensation for the President for
a term acceptable to the Board and the President.

Section 2.

The President of the College shall be the Chief Executive and Operational
Officer of the College and the official adviser to, and executive agent of, the Board
of Trustees and its Executive Committee. He/She shall, as educational and
administrative head of the College, exercise a general superintendence over all the
affairs of the institution, and bring such matters to the attention of the Board as are
appropriate to keep the Board fully informed to meet its policy-making
responsibilities. He/She shall have power, on behalf of the Trustees, to perform all
acts and execute all documents to make effective the actions of the Board or its
Executive Committee. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, he/she shall
be an ex officio member of all committees of the Board without power to vote.

Section 3.

The President of the College shall have the power and authority to appoint
officers to assist him/her in the administration of the affairs of the College,
including such officers as Vice Presidents, Deans, Directors, Treasurers, Registrars,
and their assistants. The officers so appointed by the President of the College shall
hold office for such periods of time as the President determines, and the tenure of
office shall be subject to the will of the President and the contractual employment
procedures of the Administrative and Staff Handbook then in force.
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Section 4.

The members of the faculty of the College shall be recommended by the
President of the College and elected by the Board of Trustees annually, and the
members of the faculty, when their election has been confirmed by the Board of
Trustees, shall hold office subject to the rules of the existing contractual
employment which have been approved by the Board of Trustees in the Faculty
Handbook then in force. Nominations of faculty members, however, may be made
by the President of the College and confirmed by the Board of Trustees at any
regular or special meeting.

Section 5.

In the event the office of President of the College becomes vacant, a
Presidential Search Committee of three trustees shall be elected at a meeting of the
Board prior to which two weeks notice has been given concerning this needed
action. The committee, at least two of whom shall have at least four (4) years of
consecutive service, shall be elected by open nomination from the floor. If the
Chairman of the Board of Trustees is not one of the three trustees elected, he/she
shall join the Presidential Search Committee as a voting member.,

The Search Committee shall notify, in writing, all members of the Board
of Trustees of the dates and times of the on-campus visit of any prospective
candidates. A resume of the candidate shall accompany the notification. Members
of the Board of Trustees shall have opportunity to participate in the on-campus
visit. Before the Search Committee presents a candidate for election, an informal
meeting of the candidate and the Board of Trustees shall be held.

ARTICLE VI
MEETINGS

Section 1.

All regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be held at the campus
of the College in Moore, Oklahoma. The Board of Trustees shall hold at least three
meetings each year and such other special meetings as may be called by the
Chairman of the Board of Trustees, or, in his absence from the state of Oklahoma,
by the Vice Chairman of the Board of Trustees. The first meeting shall be held in
September or October on a date selected by the Chairman of the Board of Trustees,
at which time the Board of Trustees shall receive reports and conduct any and all
other business which it may desire to consider concerning the affairs of the College
or its own affairs. The second meeting shall be held on a date selected by the
Chairman of the Board of Trustees in November or December, at which time the
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Board of Trustees shall orient newly-elected trustees, receive reports, and consider
any and all other business which the Board of Trustees may desire to transact. The
third meeting shall be held on a date selected by the Chairman of the Board of
Trustees in February, at which time the Board of Trustees shall elect the faculty of
the College, adopt an annual budget, receive reports, and consider any and all other
business which the Board of Trustees may desire to transact. The dates of regular
meetings and of all special meetings and the hour and place thereof shall be
selected by the Chairman of the Board of Trustees, and notice thereof shall be
mailed to each trustee not less than seven days before the meeting. Notice of the
time and place of all special meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be mailed to
each trustee in such time and manner as the Chairman of the Board of Trustees
deems reasonable and proper, except as hereinafter provided for amendment to the
Bylaws. Notice of special meetings shall include a brief summary of the purpose
of the meeting and the business expected to come before it.

Section 2.

The presence of at least fifty percent of the Board of Trustees shall
constitute a quorum and be sufficient to enable the Board of Trustees to pass any
resolution or motion, receive reports or recommendations, and transact any
business which may properly come before it.

Section 3.

The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be in accordance with and
governed by parliamentary law, insofar as is practicable, as set forth in Robert's
Rules of Order. ‘

Section 4.

No notice of the time, place, or purpose of any meeting of the Board of
Trustees, except for amendment of the Bylaws, whether prescribed by law, by the
Charter of the Bylaws, need be given to any member of the Board who attends in

person, or who in writing, executed and filed with the records of the meeting either
before or after the holding thereof, waives such notice.

ARTICLE VII
ACTION WITHOUT FORMAL MEETING

Section 1.

Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board of Trustees or
by any committee thereof may be taken without a formal meeting. Meetings may
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be conducted by mail, telegram, cable, teleconference, or in any other way the
Trustees shall decide. However, a written consent setting forth the action so taken
and signed by at least two-thirds of the members of the Board or of a committee,
as the case may be, must be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board
or of the committee.

ARTICLE VIII
COMMITTEES

Section 1.

There may be special or ad hoc committees as the Board of Trustees may
from time to time establish for the discharge of particular duties.

Section 2.

There shall be the standing commiittees specified in this Article. Members
and chairmen of standing committees shall be appointed by the Chairman of the
Board after consultation with the President annually at. or following, the November
or December meeting of the Board of Trustees. Except as provided in these
Bylaws, the Chairman of the Board and the President of the College shall be ex
officio members of all standing committees, and each standing committee shall
include at least three additional Trustees. Except where otherwise provided in this
Atrticle, additional ex officio members, including persons who are not on the Board
of Trustees, may be enlisted as resource persons. However, the chairman of each
standing committee and a majority of its members shall be Trustees.

Section 3.

The Board of Trustees may at any time discontinue any of its standing
committees for such time as may be determined, and the duties of any committee
so discontinued shall be performed during such discontinuance by the Executive
Committee.

Section 4.

The chairman of any committee, with the consent of the Chairman of the
Board, may request the President of the College to-appoint an administrative
officer of the College or a member of the administrative staff to serve as a liaison
between the committee and the office of the President. Such liaison person shall
assist the committee in the carrying out of its duties.




Section 5.

| Except as provided in this section, all standing committees shall meet at
o least two times annually.

Section 6.

The Board of Trustees shall be organized in the following committees:
() The Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall
1 consist of the Chairman, Vice Chairman, and Secretary of the
Board. The presence of at least 50 percent of the members of

] the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum. It shall be

the duty of the Executive Committee to advise with the President

} of the College concerning affairs of the College when the Board

| of Trustees is not in session, to make recommendations to the

| Board of Trustees, and to perform such duties as may be referred

! to it by the Board of Trustees. The Executive Committee shall
at all times be subject to and governed by the Board of Trustees
of the College.

(ii) Administrative Committees. There shall be four standing
administrative committees of the Board: Academic Affairs
Committee, Business Affairs Committee, Development
Committee, and Student Affairs Committee. The committees
and their chairmen shall be appointed by the Chairman of the
Board in consultation with the President of the College. The
Administrative Committees shall receive reports from
administrative  officers and consider policies and
recommendations regulating the life and function of the College.

(iii) Academic Affairs Committee. The Academic Affairs
Committee shall be composed of at least three Board of Trustee
members. It shall, in cooperation with the President and Vice
President of Academic Affairs, study and appraise the quality of
the academic program, measure the program relative to other
comparable institutions in terms of teaching load, class size,
student-faculty ratios, instructional expenditures, research
programs, and other relevant factors; formulate desirable short
and long range enrollment goals, advise the Business Affairs
Committee on the specifications and requirements for financing
the academic programs, recommend salary, pension, and other
personnel policies concerning the academic and faculty
personnel, review matters affecting the faculty of the College,
consider proposals on such matters, and report and make a

. recommendation thereon to the Board of Trustees as may be
required.
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@iv) Business Affairs Committee. The Business Affairs Committee
shall be composed of at least three Board of Trustees members.
It shall review annual operating and capital budgets prepared
and presented under the direction of the President and Vice
President of Business Affairs, and shall make recommendations
with respect thereto to the Board of Trustees. It shall review
major financial transactions not provided for in the budget and
submit proposed variances with recommendations to the Board
of Trustees or Executive Committee. The Vice President of
Business Affairs shall be an ex officio member of the Business
Affairs Committee, without power to vote, and shall not be
counted as a member of the Committee for any purpose.

W) Student Affairs Committee. The Student Affairs Committee
shall be composed of at least three Board of Trustee members.
It shall review matters affecting students of the College, other
than those relating to the academic program, consider proposals
on such matters, and report and make recommendations thereon
to the Board of Trustees as may be required.

(vi) Development Committee. The Development Committee shall be
composed of at least three Board of Trustee members. It shall
review and recommend student recruitment, fund-raising and
public relations programs, and report to the Business Affairs
Committee on recruitment and fund-raising progress and
estimates of income to be received therefrom. It shall report on
its activities at meetings of the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE IX
INDEMNIFICATION

Each Trustee and Officer of the College shall be indemnified by it against
all expenses actually and necessarily incurred by such Trustee or Officer in
connection with the defense of any action, suit, or proceeding to which he/she has
been made a party by reason of being or having been such Trustee or Officer
except in relation to matters as to which such Trustee or Officer shall be
adjudicated in such action, suit, or proceeding to be liable for gross negligence or
willful misconduct in the performance of duty.

ARTICLE X
CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS

A Trustee shall be considered to have a conflict of interest if (a) such
Trustee has existing or potential financial or other interests which impair or might
reasonably appear to impair such members' independent, unbiased judgment in the
discharge of his/her responsibilities to the College, or (b) such Trustee is aware that
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a member of his/her family (which for purposes of this paragraph shall be a spouse,
parents, siblings, children, and any other relative if the latter resides in the same
household as the Trustee), or any organization in which such Trustee (or member
of his/her family) is an officer, director, employee, member, partner, trustee, or
controlling stockholder, has such existing or potential financial or other interests.
All Trustees shall disclose to the Board any possible conflict of interest at the
earliest practicable time. No Trustee shall vote on any matter under consideration
at the Board or committee meeting, in which such Trustee has a conflict of interest.
The minutes of such meeting shall reflect that a disclosure was made and that the
Trustee having a conflict of interest abstained from voting. Any Trustee who is
uncertain whether he/she has a conflict of interest in any matter may request the
Board or committee to determine whether a conflict of interest exists, and the
Board or committee shall resolve the question by majority vote.

ARTICLE XI
ADMINISTRATION OF PROPERTY

Section 1. Contracts

The Board of Trustees may authorize any officer or agent of the College
to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of or
on behalf of the College, and such authority may be general or confined to specific
instances.

Section 2. Checks, Dratfts, etc.

All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, notes, or
other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the College shall be signed
by such officer or agent of the College and in such matter as shall from time to
time be determined by the Board of Trustees.

Section 3. Bonding

The Board of Trustees may require all officers, agents, or employees
charged with responsibility for the custody of any of the funds of the College to
give bonds in the amounts the Board of Trustees deems appropriate, the cost
thereof to be paid by the College.
Section 4. Deposits

All funds of the College shall be deposited to the credit of the College in

such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of Trustees may
from time to time select or approve.
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Section 5. Gifts

The Board of Trustees may accept, on behalf of the College, any
contribution, gift, bequest, or device for the general purpose or for any special
purpose of the College, and may delegate this authority to appropriate corporate
and/or administrative officers. These officers shall make regular reports to the
Board of Trustees of all gifts accepted by them in the name of the College.

Section 6. Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the College shall begin the first day of July and end the
last day of June in each year.

ARTICLE IX
BYLAW AMENDMENT

Section 1.

These Bylaws may be amended by the Board of Trustees at any meeting,
regular or special, by a vote to amend constituting two-thirds of the members
present at such a meeting, provided that the notice calling the Board meeting shall
announce that amendments to the Bylaws will be voted upon and proposed
amendments accompany the notice. Such notice must be mailed at least thirty (30)
days prior to such meeting to each Trustee at his/her usual place of residence. Any
such change shall be subject to The Oklahoma State Association of Free Will
Baptists.

Section 2.

These Bylaws shall stand in the place and stead of, and shall be substituted
for all other and former Bylaws of the Board of Trustees of the College which have
heretofore been adopted.

Section 3.

Prior to each meeting during the month of February of the Board of
Trustees, the Executive Committee shall review these Bylaws and suggest any
necessary changes thereto.

The within and foregoing Amended and Restated Bylaws of Hillsdale Free
Will Baptist College, Inc. have been duly adopted by the Board of Trustees on this
5th day of May, 1994.
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ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF THE
HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE, INC.

Know all men by these presents, that, we whose names are hereunto subscribed,
do hereby associate ourselves together for the purpose of forming a corporation
under the provisions of the corporation laws of the State of Oklahoma, and for that
purpose state:

ARTICLE ONE

The name of this corporation shall be HILLSDALE FREE WILL
BAPTIST COLLEGE, INC.

ARTICLE TWO

The purpose of this corporation shall be the creation, establishment and
maintenance of a college and institution of higher learning devoted to the
promotion and impartation of higher learning, Christian education and such other
education, instruction, leaming, training and research as may be deemed essential
for the cause of Christ and to that end prescribe courses of study and grant degrees.
The doctrinal and theological position of this institution shall be that of the
sponsoring denomination, Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists and
the treatise of the National Association of Free Will Baptists as endorsed by the
state body, and in connection therewith, in accordance with the stipulation of the
Constitution and By-laws of the State Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc.

(a.) To prescribe courses of study for both resident and
correspondence students, which shall include general education in the arts,
Christian Ministries of Service and Biblical studies for wisdom; said courses to be
taught in both a Junior College Division and a Bible College Division, and to
award degrees, either graduate or post-graduate, to those persons satisfactorily
completing the prescribed courses of study and to grant such other literary honors,
including honorary degrees, as shall be deemed advisable.

(b)) To charge and coliect tuition as determined by the Board of
Trustees and to create scholarships.

(c.) To employ professors, instructors and other subordinate
employees as may be necessary for the proper conduct of the college under the
direction and control of the President of the College, with the advice and consent
of the majority of the Board of Trustees.

78



(d.) To institute and carry on missions and commissions for
missionary purposes and investigations.

(e) To publish and distribute such pamphlets, literature or books as
may be required in the conduct of such work and the general promotion of the
College.

) To sue and be sued in its corporate name and to enter into
contracts of every type and nat ure.

(g) To solicit support, receive, collect, hold and receive by gift or
bequest personal property in any amount, money or other thing of value; to
purchase real estate, to receive real estate that may be given, or devised to the
college for achieving the legitimate ends of the college and to sell or mortgage the
same as the need arise.

(h.) To borrow money in payment of property for erecting buildings
and making improvements and for any other purpose germane to the objectives and
purposes of the college.

@{.) To issue notes, bonds, debentures and other evidences of
indebtedness and execute mortgages, liens, and other incumbrance upon the
property of the corporation, real or otherwise, to secure the payment of any such
evidences of indebtedness.

G.) To transact any and all business connected with said College as
may be necessary to achieve the purposes of said College.

k) To obtain under Internal Revenue Laws of the United States and
of the Revenue Laws of the State of Oklahoma exemption from exemption from
income property and other forms of taxation.

ARTICLE THREE

The location of this property shall be in Moore, Oklahoma.

ARTICLE FOUR

The duration of this corporation shall be perpetual.
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ARTICLE FIVE

The general control of this corporation shall be vested in a Board of
Trustees consisting of seventeen (17) members, ten (10) of which shall be elected
by the delegates to the annual Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists--
each of which shall serve for a term of five (5) years, and until his successor is
elected and qualified. Two members shall be elected at each annual sitting of the
State Association for the expiring five year term and vacancies that occur on the
board. The representatives of the other supporting states shall be as follows:
Missouri--three (3) members, Arkansas--two (2) members, and Texas--two (2)
members, who shall be elected by the delegates of their representative state
association, each to serve for a term designated by the states they represent.

The distribution for members of this board shall be reevaluated every five
years beginning in 1999. A committee for this purpose shall be appointed each
previous year, beginning in 1998.

ARTICLE SIX

An executive committee consisting of the Chairman, Vice Chairman, and
Secretary of the Board of Trustees shall possess all powers of the Board of Trustees
between the stated meetings of the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE SEVEN

All contracts for building construction shall be let only to persons or
corporations posting a valid performance bond and recording the same in the office
of the County Clerk of Cleveland County, Oklahoma.

SECTION IX
AMENDMENTS

This charter may be hereafter amended subject to the provisions contained

herein and the laws of the State of Oklahoma. It is provided, however, that the

Trustees of the College shall not propose or apply for any amendment which has
not been previously authorized by an act of the Oklahoma State Association.

80



OKLAHOMA WOMEN ACTIVE FOR CHRIST

CONSTITUTION
ARTICLE ]
NAME
This organization shall be known as the Oklahoma Women Active For
Christ.
ARTICLE II
PURPOSE

The purpose of this convention shall be to bring the women of each
district convention and independent local auxiliary together for fellowship, sharing
information, and encouraging one another in the work of the Lord.

ARTICLE III
OFFICERS
» The Officers of this convention shall be a president, vice president,
secretary, assistant secretary, treasurer, assistant treasurer, and field worker. These
shall serve on the state executive committee together with three members elected
by the convention. These shall serve for a period of 2 years.

ARTICLE IV
MEMBERSHIP
This convention shall be composed of the officers of the convention
together with each member of the district or independent local auxiliary.

ARTICLE V
MEETINGS
The annual meeting shall be held each year on the day preceding the
Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists and at the designated by said
Association.

ARTICLE VI
AMENDMENTS
This constitution may be amended at any annual meeting of the
convention by a two-thirds vote of members present.
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BY-LAWS

ARTICLE 1

DUTIES OF OFFICERS

Section 1, President

The President shall preside over all meetings, appoint such committees as
may be needed, call the executive committee together when necessary, be ex-
officio member of all committees, and serve as chairman of the executive
committee, see that reports are made promptly to the national secretary and
perform all duties usually pertaining to such an office.

Section 2, Vice President
The vice president shall preside in the absence of the president or by her
request and otherwise assist her in the overseeing of the work in general.

Section 3, Secretary

The secretary shall keep an accurate record of all proceedings of the
convention and executive committee meetings, preserve all valuable papers and
turn same over to her successor in office, and make an annual report to the national
secretary on a form available from the WNAC office. She shall compile the
districts’ slates of officers and addresses immediately after the convention. She
shall also send a slate of officers and addresses to the national executive secretary.

The secretary shall also serve as historian keeping an historical record and
submitting historical information to the national executive secretary annually.

Section 4, Assistant Secretary

The assistant secretary shall assist the secretary in recording proceedings
of convention and executive committee meetings and shall aid the secretary in all
her work as needed. .

Section 5, Treasurer

The treasurer shall have charge of all funds belonging to this convention
and shall pay out same only when authorized by the convention. The treasurer
shall keep an accurate account and shall give a written report of all funds received
and disbursed at each annual meeting of the convention. She shall also send a
monthly report to the WNAC office (executive secretary treasurer). The treasurer
shall secure the services of a certified public accountant (CPA) on an annual basis.
The treasurer shall receive an honorarium of $25.00 per month and an annual
honorarium of $275 per year out of the Retreat Fund.

Section 6, Assistant Treasurer
The assistant treasurer shall assist the treasurer in all her work as needed

and shall have the authority to sign checks in the absence of the treasurer or at the
request of the treasurer.
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Section 7, Field Worker
The field worker shall be responsible for organizing new auxiliaries and
for promoting the work of the state and national convention.

ARTICLE II
ELECTIONS
The officers shall be nominated by a nominating committee and shall be
elected by acclamation, unless there are other nominations. In case of more than
one nominee for any particular office, a vote will be taken on each. All elections
shall be held on odd numbered years at the closing business session of the
convention.

ARTICLE III
EXPENSES
Section 1. When performing official duties for the convention,
executive committee shail be reimbursed for mileage at the current rate allowable
by the IRS. Expenses incurred by executive committee, i.e. telephone calls,
postage, stationery, etc.., shall be reimbursed by the convention.

Section 2. An amount of $200.00 shall be paid toward the expense
of the state president to attend the WNAC. If the president is unable to attend,
$200.00 shall be paid to the executive committee member appointed by the
president to attend the meeting.

Section 3. An amount of $75.00 shall be paid toward the expense
of the president when attending the national retreat or the national leadership
conference.

ARTICLE IV

COMMITTEES

Section 1, Executive Committee

The executive committee shall be composed of the seven officers and
three members elected by the convention. Seven of these shall compose a quorum.
They shall hold meetings for the transaction of business as often as necessary. It
shall be the duty of the executive committee to maintain an overseeing of the work
at large. They shall act for the convention when necessary. They shall meet with
district presidents the night preceding the state auxiliary convention. They will
send out a newsletter with expenses paid by state convention.

Section 2, Resolutions Committee

A resolutions committee of five members shall be appointed by the
president at the annual convention.
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Section 3, Nominating Committee

The nominating committee shall be composed of one member from each
district convention and independent local auxiliary. Nominations for this
committee shall be submitted with annual reports. The nominating committee shall
be elected by the body on even numbered years at the annual convention.

Section 4, Registration Committee
The registration committee, chaired by the vice president, shall be
provided by the district convention which is host to state convention.

ARTICLE V
FEES AND REPORTS
Members shall pay dues of $10.50 per year, with 25 cents remaining in the
district, $10.25 to be forwarded to state where 25 cents shall be retained, and
$10.00 forwarded to WNAC as required for membership fees. It shall be the duty
of each body directly affiliated with the state auxiliary convention to send a report
of membership to every annual session.

ARTICLE VI
AMENDMENTS
These by-laws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of members present
at the annual meeting of the Oklahoma Women Active for Christ.

ARTICLE VII
CONTRIBUTIONS
Support through regular channels is encouraged for the following:
1. Missions

A. Pre-Easter Season of Prayer - Laura Belle Barnard
Offering for Foreign Missions

B. Pre-Thanksgiving Season of Prayer - Lizzie
McAdams Offering for Home Missions

C. Oklahoma State Projects for Home and Foreign
Missions

D. Missionary Provision Closet

2. Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College
A. Oklahoma State Project
B. Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College Student Loan
Fund (special program and offering in September to
assist worthy and needy students at Hillsdale Free Will
Baptist College).
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3. Free Will Baptist Bible College
A. Memorial Student Loan Fund (special program and
offering in September to assist worthy and needy
students at Free Will Baptist Bible College).

4. WNAC
A. Co-Laborer Offering (monthly or quarterly
designated to WNAC General Fund).
B. Emphasis Month Offering (August or other times
more convenient designated to WNAC General Fund).
C. Tithes (paid of all undesignated money received).
D. Endowment Fund
E. General Office Support ($10.00 per month per
auxiliary is suggested).
F. Minute Money ($1.00 per year per auxiliary for
National Minutes).

5. Other
A. National Student Loan Fund
B. Oklahoma Women Active For Christ Scholarship
C. Free Will Baptist Children’s Homes

ARTICLE VIII

WNAC DELEGATE

Section 1. Each district convention shall submit one nomination
for a State delegate to WNAC with their annual report. This nomination (along
with others as needed to make up 15 delegates to WNAC) shall be elected by the
body at the annual meeting. It shall be the duty of delegates elected to notify
president if they cannot attend WNAC. President shall appoint delegates as needed
in absence of regular elected delegates.

Section 2. A National Nominating Committee member shall be

elected at the annual convention on odd numbered years and serve for a period of
2 years.

85




QUESTIONNAIRE FOR MINISTERS TO BE ORDAINED

Date

NAME
ADDRESS
MEMBER OF CHURCH

1. Do you have license?
2. If you have license, how long have you carried them?
3. By what Association were they issued?
4. How many sermons have you preached?
5. Where are you preaching now?
6. Why do you want to be ordained?
7. Are you married? How many times?
8. If you have been married more than once, is a former companion living?
9. How many children do you have?
10. Is your wife a member of the Free Will Baptist Church?
11. How long have you been a Christian?
12. How long have you been a Free Will Baptist?
13. Is you wife willing that you be ordained?
14. Do you or your wife have any habits that would hinder your ministry?

15. If you have belonged to other denominations, give name of each and length of
time with each.

16. In your opinion, what is God’s plan for financing His work?

17. Do you tithe to the church you are a member of?
18. Are you willing to make any sacrifice that may be involved in this ministry?

19. Are you willing to abstain from any indulgences that might hinder your
effective influence in the ministry?
20. Will your financial circumstances hinder you in taking the pastoral care of a
church?

21. How much education do you have?
22. Have you had any special training in doctrinal and pastoral theology?
23. Have you had any courses of study in Homiletics?
24. Do you have plans to better qualify yourself for the ministry?
25. If so, what are your plans?
26. Are you resolved to devote yourself wholly to the ministry?

27. Would you be willing to continue preaching under license if this committee felt
that it was best?

28. Have you completed the Ministers’ Preparation Course?

86



QUESTIONS ON DOCTRINE

1. Do you believe that the Scripture, the Old and New Testament, are the infallible
Word of God, and the only rule of faith and practice?
2. Do you believe in the Trinity?
3. Name the God Head.
4. Is salvation obtained through the Blood of Christ?
5. Name the condition of salvation.

6. Do you believe that speaking in an unknown tongue is evidence of having
received the Baptism of the Holy Ghost?

7. Do you believe in a second definite work of Grace or Baptism of the Holy
Ghost, separate and apart from regeneration?
8. What composes the body of Christ?
9. Does the Bible teach that God has an organized visible Church on this earth?
10. Do you believe that Baptism is a Gospel Ordinance?

11. Who are the proper subjects of Baptism?

12. Do you believe that Immersion is the proper method of water baptism?
13. Do you believe that the Lord’s Supper and Feet Washing are divine ordinances
and should be observed repeatedly?

14. A. Do you teach and practice these ordinances?

B. Do you practice these ordinances at night?

15.Do you believe in the possibility of apostasy?

16. Do you believe in the resurrection of the bodies of all men?
17. Do you believe that there will be a judgment when time and man’s probation
will close, forever and then all will be judged according to their works?

18. Do you believe that immediately after the judgement the righteous will enter
into eternal life, and the wicked into a state of endless punishment?

19. Do you believe that Christ at His second coming, will close the gospel
dispensation, glorify His saints, and judge the world?
20. I pledge myself to teach and defend the Free Will Baptist Doctrine to the best
of my ability. If at any future time I preach or teach any doctrine contrary to the

Free Will Baptist articles of faith, I will surrender my credentials to the Quarterly
Conference of which I am a member.
Signed
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ARTICLES OF FAITH OF STATE ASSOCIATION

1. THE BIBLE - The Scriptures of the Old and New Testament were
given by the inspiration of God, and are our infallible rules of faith and practice.

2. GOD - There is one living and true God, revealed in nature as the
Creator, Preserver and Righteous Governor of the Universe, and in the Scriptures
as the Father, Son and Holy Ghost, yet as one God, infinitely wise and good, whom
all intelligent creatures are supremely to love, adore and obey.

3. CHRIST - Christ is God manifest in the flesh: in His divine nature truly
God, in His human nature truly man. The mediator between God and man, once
crucified, He is now risen and glorified as our ever-present Savior and Lord.

4. THE HOLY SPIRIT - The Scriptures assigns to the Holy Spirit all the
attributes of God. He is the Reprover, Comforter, Guide and Sanctifier of all men.

5. THE GOVERNMENT OF GOD - God exercises a wise and benevolent
providence over all beings and all things by maintaining the constitution and laws
of nature. He also performs special acts of Grace, not otherwise provided for as
highest welfare of man requires.

6. THE SINFULNESS OF MAN - Man was created innocent, but by
disobedience fell into a state of sin and condemnation. His posterity, therefore
inherited a fallen nature of such tendencies that all who come to years of
accountability, sin and become guilty before God.

7. THE WORK OF CHRIST - The Son of God, by His incarnation, life,
suffering, death, and resurrection effected for all a redemption from sin that is-full
and free and is the ground of salvation by faith.

8. THE WORK OF SALVATION - The conditions of salvation are:
1. Repentance or sincere sorrow for sin and the hearty
renunciations of it.
2. Faith or the unreserved committal of one’s self to Christ as
Savior and Lord, with purpose to love and obey Him in all
things. In the exercise of saving faith the soul is
renewed by the Holy Spirit; freed from the dominion of
sin and becomes a child of God.
3. Continuance in faith and obedience until death.

9. ELECTION - God determined from the beginning to save all who

should comply with the conditions of salvation. Hence by faith in Christ, men
become His elect.
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10. FREEDOM OF WILL - The Human will is free and self controlled,
having power to yield to the influence of the truth and the Spirit and live, or to
resist them and perish.

11. SALVATION FREE - God desires the salvation of all, the Gospel
invites all, the Holy Spirit strives with all, and whosoever will may come and take
the water of life freely.

12. PERSEVERANCE - All believers in Christ, who through grace
preserve in holiness to the end of life, have the promise of eternal salvation.

13. BACKSLIDING AND APOSTASY - A person who has been
regenerated or born again and is living in unconfessed, unforgiven sin, is rebellious
to the principles of the Kingdom of God and His righteousness, and therefore is a
backslider in a lost condition who must repent and be restored to the right
relationship with God or be eternally lost. We recognize, according to Hebrews
6:4-6, that it is possible for a person to get in the condition that he could never
return to Christ. This, we believe, is Apostasy; however, we also recognize that a
regenerate person can fall into sin, be in a lost condition and still not be an
Apostate. This person, through repentance, can be reconciled to God.

14. GOSPEL ORDINANCES - Baptism, or the immersion of believers
in water, and the Lord’s Supper, are ordinances to be perpetuated under the Gospel;
Feet Washing, an ordinance teaching humility, of universal obligation, and be
administered to all true believers.

15. TITHING - God commanded tithes and offerings in the Old
Testament; Jesus Christ endorsed in the Gospel (Matt. 23:23), and the Apostle Paul
said, “Upon the first day of the week let every one of you lay by him in store as
God hat prospered him.” I Cor. 16:2.

16. THE CHRISTIAN SABBATH - The divine law requires that one day
in seven be set apart from the secular employment and amusements for rest,
worship, holy works and activities, and for personal communion with God.

17. RESURRECTION, JUDGMENT, AND FINAL RETRIBUTION -
The Scriptures teach the resurrection of all men at the last day. They that have
done good will come forth to the resurrection of life, and they that have done evil
unto the resurrection of damnation: then the wicked shall “Go away into eternal
punishment but the righteous into eternal life.”
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"

RULES OF ORDER

1. At every sitting of the Association, business shall be opened and concluded by
prayer by the Moderator or Whomever he may request.

2. Ministers and deacons present are invited to seats, allowed to take part in
debates on all subjects, and to vote.

3. Those who speak shall rise and address the Moderator. Personal reflections
shall be avoided in all debates.

4. No motion may be discussed until made and seconded.

5. When a motion has been made and seconded, and a member opposes its
discussion, the Moderator shall put the question, “Shall it be discussed?” If
negative, the question shall not be discussed.

6. If any proposition or motion under debate contains two or more points, it shall
be divided at the request of any member, and the vote taken separately.

7. Motions made and lost shall not be recorded.

8. No one shall speak more than twice on the same subject without special leave
of the Moderator.

9. All questions shall be decided by a majority vote of all Members present.

BY-LAWS OF STATE ASSOCIATION

1. The clerk or assistant clerk, or in their absence, the senior minister in years shall
call the Association into conference, and if a quorum is present the moderator, or
in his absence, the assistant moderator shall take charge; and if neither of them is
present the senior minister in years shall act as moderator.

2. It shall be the duty of the clerk to enroll the delegates to the Association, who
shall present themselves with proper evidence of their rights to seats therein, and
those enrolled by the clerk shall compose the Association.

3. It shall be the duty of every District belonging to this Association to send a
letter to every annual session of this Association reporting in the same; spiritual
condition, benevolent work and its statistics. Any District belonging to this
Association, which shall fail to report itself for two successive sessions, may be
dismissed from the Association by a two thirds vote of all members present.

90



4. Each meeting shall be opened by reading a portion of the Bible and with prayer,
and shall be closed with prayer.

5. By a two-thirds vote of members present, a ruling of the moderator can be
overruled.

6. This Association may correspond by messenger or otherwise with other
religious bodies.

7. This Association shall sit with open doors except when it shall go into a
committee of the whole.

8. Any person not a member of this Association may be allowed to take part in its
discussions by obtaining permission from the moderator.

9. It shall be the duty of all the Association to be present at the time appointed for
each meeting, and anyone wishing to retire shall first obtain leave of the moderator.

10. No person shall be allowed to nominate more than one member of any
committee, provided the person nominated be elected.

11. The moderator shall no allow discussions when not carried on in a Christian
spirit or when he thinks it will cause discord or division.

12. Anyone desiring to speak shall rise to his feet and address the moderator by
the appellation “Brother Moderator,” but shall not speak further until recognized

‘by the moderator.

13. No member of this association shall be allowed to speak more than then
minutes nor twice on the same subject without permission from the moderator.

14. This association shall meet annually beginning on Tuesday following the
- second Sunday in October.

15. These By-Laws may be altered or amended at any regular or adjourned session
of this Association by a two-thirds vote of the members present.
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CONSTITUTION OF STATE ASSOCIATION

PREAMBLE: From long experience, we the members of the Free Will Baptist
denomination, being regularly baptized upon a profession of our faith in Jesus
Christ, and realizing the necessity of a bond in union and fellowship among us as
a church; and to preserve and maintain correspondence and coordination with us,
do therefore ordain this Constitution for our better denomination government,

ARTICLE1

NAME: This organization shall be known as the OKLAHOMA STATE
ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS.

ARTICLE II

PURPOSE: The object and purpose of this organization shall be to unify the work
of the various bodies composing this State Association, and to devise and execute
measures for the extension of the Kingdom of God in connection with the various
bodies in the Association, or that may hereafter be represented therein.

ARTICLE III

REPRESENTATION:

Section 1. This Association shall be composed of all ordained ministers
and deacons with membership in some local church which is a member of a
District Association with membership in the State Association.

Section 2. Each District Association shall be entitled to a number of
elected delegates equal with the number of churches composing said Association.
These delegates may be recommended by the local churches and shall be endorsed
by their District Association.

ARTICLE IV

FINANCE: Each District Association shall be responsible for sending $50.00 per
church to the State Association for State and National Convention fees, of this
$50.00, $25.00 shall go to the State Association and $25.00 to the National
Association.

ARTICLE V

DISCIPLINE:

L Section 1. This State Association shall have the right to settle any
question of discipline, doctrine or practices that may properly come before it from
any of the bodies composing said organization; furthermore, if there be any
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question of discipline, doctrine or practices on the part of an affiliated association,
delegates of that association shall not be seated until these questions have been
settled to the satisfaction of the General Board.

Section 2. Decisions of the General Board may be appealed in this
manner. All appeals shall come before the State Association when sitting in a
committee as a whole.
: ARTICLE VI

OFFICERS:

A. The officers of the State Association shall consist of a Moderator,
Assistant Moderator, Clerk, Assistant Clerk and an Executive Secretary. Each of
these shall be elected at the close of each regular session except the Executive
Secretary.

B. (1) The Executive Secretary shall be elected for an indefinite term. It
shall be the responsibility of the Executive Board to seek out a prospective
candidate and make their recommendation to the body at the State Association in
its regular session, with privilege of nominations from the floor.

(2) In the event of a vacancy occurring during the course of the year,
the Executive Board shall fill the vacancy until the annual setting of the
Association.

(3) Any time a majority of the Executive Board, or seven (7) members
of the General Board requests a vote of confidence on the Executive Secretary, a
vote shall be taken. If such action results in the termination of the Executive
Secretary, he shall be given sixty (60) days severance pay.

(4) In the event of immorality on the part of the Executive Secretary,
orof him teaching or preaching doctrine contrary to the Free Will Baptist Treatise,
he may be dismissed by a majority vote of the Executive Board with no severance

pay.
ARTICLE VII

BOARDS:

All standing boards and committees shall be composed of seven (7)
elected members who shall serve terms of 7, 6, 5, 4, 3, 2, and 1 years with such ex-
officio members as may be provided for elsewhere with no member serving more

" than two (2) consecutive terms of office or portion thereof, except:

A, (1) the Board of Christian Education which shall consist of 10
members who shall serve five (5) years with two members elected annually,

(2) the General Board which shall be composed of one (1)
member from each affiliated association, the chairman of each standing board, and
the current general officers of this association, and

(3) the College Board of Trustees which shall be composed as
provided for in the Articles of Incorporation of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College,
Inc.
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B. (1) The Moderator shall be authorized to appoint annually, at the
beginning of each session, a Committee on Committees, which shall consist of 5
members, each member being from a different District Association within the State
Association.

(2) This Committee on Committees in turn shall select the-
following committees that are authorized by, but function only, during the annual
state convention - Resolution, Obituary, and Nominating Committee. These
committees shall consist of S member per committee, each member being from a
different District Association within the State Association.

(3) The Nominating Committee shall annually present one name
to the assemble for each vacant office except General Board, with nominating
privilege form the floor.

The standing boards of this association shall be: Executive Board; Board
of Church Extension, Missions and Evangelism; Board of Christian Education; and
College Board of Trustees.

No standing board shall meet in a functional meeting during the session
of the association. '

ARTICLE VIII

DUTIES, SCOPE OF ENDEAVOR AND QUALIFICATIONS
OF STANDING BOARDS

Section 1.

EXECUTIVE BOARD: The Executive Board shall be composed of seven
(7) members who are members of an affiliated association and in good standing
with the association of which they are members. They shall be elected at the
discretion of this association. ,

It shall be the duty of this board to act in behalf of the association when
it is not in session. It shall be bound to carry out the directions of the association
and shall hold itself bound by every consideration of morality and honor to carry
out the wishes of this association and to act under its instructions in whatever
technical rights, civil laws and the decisions of courts may give it in certain
emergencies. It shall be the duty of this board to sign their signatures to any and
all papers concerning properties, indebtedness, bonds, or other legal documents
pertaining to the execution of the will of this association, exclusive of the College
Board of Trustees.

This board shall have the oversight of the Executive Department of this
association. The members shall assist and direct such, work for the general
promotion of this association as is deemed needful or niecessary as the means
available shall permit. The Executive Department shall serve as the coordinating
agency of this association to correlate the work of all standing boards and agencies.

This board shall have the oversight of Free Will Baptist Book Store and
shall endeavor to serve affiliated association s and churches and the community
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with literature and church supplies. Merchandising procedures shall be those
accepted as normal retail procedures with the board being cognizant of the spiritual
contribution of the store in distributing Christian literature.

All decisions of this board shall be governed by the general tenets of this
association and shall not violate this constitution.

This board shall organize itself and elect such officers as necessary to the
orderly conduct of its affairs and labors. This board shall keep an accurate record
of all meetings, decisions, and work done and shall make a report in writing at each
annual session of this association. All records shall be available to this association
at its request.

Whereas this board represents the association when not in session, it and
it alone shall have the power to call the association into special conference
provided each affiliated association shall be given notice at least ten (10) days prior
to the meeting of such special conference.

Section 2.

GENERAL BOARD: This board shall be composed of one (1) member
from each affiliated association, the chairman of each standing board, and the
current general officers of this association. Each member must be a member of an
affiliated association and in good standing with the association of which he is a
member. The members shall be elected at the discretion of this association.

The duties of this board shall be to meet one (1) day preceding the annual
session of this association. This board shall serve as the credential committee with
the duties and responsibilities and assigned by Article V of this constitution. This
board shall hear reports of all standing boards. It shall serve as budget committee
" and shall make such recommendations as deemed pertinent to this association. A
complete and accurate record shall be kept of meetings of this board and a report
shall be made in writing to this association in its annual session.

The moderator of the association shall serve as chairman of this board, and
the clerk of the association shall serve as its clerk.

Section 3.

BOARD OF CHURCH EXTENSION, MISSIONS AND EVANGELISM:
This board shall be composed of seven (7) members who are members of affiliated
associations and in good standing with the associations of which they are members.
They shall be elected at the discretion of this association.

It shall be the duty of this board to labor to further the Gospel of Jesus
Christ into the uttermost parts of the earth. In accomplishing this, they are to
endeavor to establish missions and churches in communities within the bounds of
_this association with whatever moral and financial assistance that may be theirs.
In cases of small churches failing to function, whatever assistance deemed
appropriate shall be rendered to maintain the effective witness of that church by
either direct labor with the church or with an associational board in instance where
“the affiliated association has a functional board or agency.
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This board shall be empowered to receive and convey title to real property
in the area of its labors. '

The promotion of missionary endeavors from a local, state or national
level shall come withing the scope of endeavor of this board. This board shall
assist in maintaining prayer and financial support of missionary enterprises through
whatever channels available.

Whereas missionary and evangelistic labors are so intimately related, this
board shall assist through participation or assistance in maintaining a strong
evangelistic thrust in the life of affiliated association.

This board shall organize itself and elect such officers as necessary to the
orderly conduct of its affairs and labors. This board shall keep an accurate record
of all meetings, decisions, work done, funds received and disbursed and shall make
a report in writing at each annual session of this association. All records shall be
available to this association at its request. '

Section 4.

COLLEGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES: The College Board of Trustees shall
be composed as provided for in the Articles of Incorporation of Hillsdale Free Will
Baptist College, Inc.

Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Inc. Is an agency of the Oklahoma
State Association of Free Will Baptists and is incorporated under the corporate
laws of the State of Oklahoma. The articles of incorporation are a part of this
association’s record and delineates the purpose, duty and scope of endeavor of the
members of this board.

Section 5.

BOARD OF CHRISTIAN EDUCATION: This board shall consist of 10
members who are members of affiliated associations and in good standing with the
association of which they are members. The members shall serve five years with
two members elected annually.

The duties of this board shall be to promote and provide assistance for the
development and sustaining of a total Christian Education program in the local
church and district association.

This board shall also administer state-wide activities such as, but not
limited to, youth camps, seminars, and training programs, working with local
agencies to distribute and employ effective methods and materials.

This board shall organize itself and such officers as necessary to the
orderly conduct of its affairs and labors. This board shall keep accurate record of
all meetings, discussions, work don, funds received and disbursed and shall make
a report I writing at each annual session of this association. All records shall be
available to this association at its request.
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Section 6.

VACANCIES: Vacancies shall occur when a member moves from the
territorial bounds of this association, by death, by resignation or by removal from
office by this association. In the event of disciplinary action where charges
concerning misconduct, doctrine or practice shall have been lodged against a
member of any board, his office shall be held in abeyance until such charges shall
be concluded or as determined by this association.

All boards shall have power to fill vacancies arising between sessions of
this association. Such appointment shall terminate at the next session of this
association and shall be filled by this association.

Section 7.

EMPLOYEES: All employees of boards or agencies of this association
shall be employed by agreement or contract with employing board or agency upon
approval of this association except those elected by this association and the
conditions of their employment shall be those approved by this association.

The duties of the Executive Secretary of this association shall be:

¢))] He is to represent, or cause to be represented, the
association at all affairs of interest to the association.
) He is to promote the work of the association in such a
manner so as to unify the efforts of the association.
: 3) He is to serve with all standing boards and committees
of the association in and ex-officio capacity.
@) He is to aid in planning the work of the association by
relating the activities and plans of one board to another.
) He is to report to the association during each annual
" session.
6) He is to communicate to the affiliated members of this

association the pressing causes and events before the association. This can be in
person or by means of a periodical bulletin or both.

@ He shall serve as treasurer of this association. An
accurate and complete record of all funds received and disbursed shall be kept and
a written report shall be included in his report to this association in its annual
session.

. €)) The conditions of employment shall be determined by
the Executive Board.

ARTICLE IX

DISSOLUTION:

Should this association cease to function, all properties and holdings shall
go the National Association of Free Will Baptists after all creditors are satisfied and
indebtedness cleared.
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ARTICLE X

AMENDMENTS:

This constitution may be amended or altered at any regular session of the
association by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of members present and voting,
provided proposed amendment or alteration be presented in writing to the body one
(1) day in advance.

ARTICLE XI
SPECIAL SESSIONS:

Elected delegates to the last session of this association shall be retained as
standing delegates for special called sessions.
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